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Gilberto R. Duavit, Jr.
Felipe L. Gozon

NOTICE TO STOCKHOLDERS: K
Joel Marcelo G. Jimenez |

Jaime C. Laya E: ]
Y‘ T‘ME o

Artemio V. Panganiban B

Manuel P. Quiogue \J

Felipe S. Yalong
Dear Stockholder:

Please be informed that the Annual Meeting of the Stockholders of GMA Holding‘s, Inc. is on
August 18, 2017 (Friday) at 10:00 a.m. at Dario (formerly Balducci) G/F Serendra,
Bonifacio Global Gity, Fort Bonifacio, Taguig City to consider, discuss or vote on the
following: _

Call to order

Certification and Notice of Quorum

Approval of the Minutes of the Stockholders Meeting held on September 30, 2016.
Report of the President )

Ratification of Acts of the Board of Directors for the previous year

Election of Directors, including the Independent Directors

Election of the External Auditor ,

Consideration of such other business as may properly come before the meeting

Adjournment

©ONIIOTR®N =

Any stockholder may vote by proxy provided that such authorization remains unrevoked and on
file with, or is submitted to, the undersigned at the 15/F Sagittarius Building, H.V. De la Costa
Street, Salcedo Village, Makati City.

For purposes of the meeting, only stockholders of record as of April 26, 2017 shall be entitled to
vote.

The Organizational Meeting of the Board of Directors shall be held immediately after the Annual
Stockholders’ Meeting. Thank you.

For the Board of Directors:

. 7?/
ANNA-TERESA M. GOZON ABROGAR
Corporate Secretary



%

i

We are not soliciting your proxy. However, if you are unable to attend the meeting but would.
like to be represented thereat, you may accomplish the proxy form herein provided below and
submit the same to the Office of the Corporate Secretary on or before August 14, 2017. You
may deliver the proxy or send it in advance through fax no. (632) 812-0008. Validation of
proxies shall be held on August 16, 2017 at 10:00 a.m. at the GMA Network Center.

PROXY

|/We hereby name and appoint , or in his/her absence, the Chairman
of the meeting, as my/our proxy at the Annual Stockholders” Meeting of GMA Holdings, Inc. to
be held at Dario (formerly Balducci), G/F Serendra, Bonifacio Global City, Fort Bonifacio,
Taguig City on Friday, August 18, 2017 at 10:00 a.m. and at any postponement or
adjournment thereof.

Name

Signature

Date

No. of Shares Held
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SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
 AMENDED SEC FORM 20-1S

AMENDED INFORMATION STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 20

OF THE SECURITIES REGULATION CODE
SECURITIES Aini EXCHANG{@

| COMMISSION
GMA HOLDINGS, INC. D AL Bl ek dng
Jut 18 2017
Check the appropriate box: L ﬂ-—Z‘J J
‘ MARK REGULATIONJ ;;P
[ ] Preliminary Information Statement f: TIME: 1(?_
[ v ]Definitive Information Statement \)

Name of Registrant as specified in its charter: GMA HOLDINGS, INC.
Province, country or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization: PHILIPPINES
SEC Identification ’Num'b'e;’ CS200602356

BIR Tax Identification Code 244-658-896-000

Address of principal office : Postal Code

UNIT 5D TOWER ONE, ONE MCKINLEY PLACE, NEW BONIFACIO GLOBAL CITY,
FORT BONIFACIO, TAGUIG CITY ,

Registrant’s telephone number, including area code (632) 9827777

Date, time and place of the meeting of security holders

DATE : August 18, 2017
TIME : 10:00 a.m.
PLACE: Dario (formerly) Balducci, G/F Serendra, Bonifacio Global Clty,

Fort Bonifacio, Taguig City

Approximate date on which the Amended Information Statement is first to be sent or
given to security holders

July 27, 2017

In case of Proxy Solicitations:

Name of Person Filing the Statement/Solicitor: NOT APPLICABLE

Address and Telephone No.: NOT APPLICABLE



11. Securities registered pursuant to Sections 8 and 12 of the Code or Sections 4 and 8 of
the RSA (information on number of shares and amount of debt is applicable only to
corporate registrants):

Title of Each Class ' Number of Shares of Common Stock
' Qutstanding and Amount of Debt
QOutstanding

Philippine Depositary Receipts (“PDRs”) 832,110,100

12. Are any or all of registrant's securities listed in a Stock Exchange?

PDRs/PHILIPPINE STOCK EXCHANGE

GMA HOLDINGS, INC.

This Information Statement dated July 27, 2017, is being furnished to the stockholders of
record of GMA Holdings, Inc. as of April 26, 2017 in connection with the Annual Stockholders’

Meeting.

WE ARE NOT ASKING YOU FOR A PROXY AND YOU ARE
REQUESTED NOT TO SEND US A PROXY.

A. GENERAL INFORMATION

ltem 1. Date, time and place of meeting of security holders.

(a) State the date, time and place of the meeting

Date August 18, 2017
Time : 10:00 a.m. »
Place: Dario (formerly Balducci), G/F Serendra, Bonifacio Global City,

Fort Bonifacio, Taguig City

(b) Approximate date on which copies of the amended information statement are first to be
sent to the security holders:

July 27,2017



ltem 2. Dissenters' Right of Appraisal

Title X of the Corporation Code of the Philippines grants to a shareholder the right to dissent
and demand payment of the fair value of his share in certain instances, to wit: (1) in case any
amendment to the corporation’s articles of incorporation has the effect of changing and
restricting the rights of any shareholder or class of shares, or of authorizing preferences in any
respect superior to those of outstanding shares of any class; (2) in case of any sale, lease,
exchange, transfer, mortgage or other disposition of all or substantially all of the corporate
property or assets; (3) in case of merger or consolidation; (4) in case the corporation decides to
invest its funds in another corporation or. business or for any purpose other than the primary
purpose; and (5) extension or shortening of the term of corporate existence.

Under Section 42 of the Corporation Code, a stockholder is likewise given an appraisal right in
cases where a corporation decides to invest its funds in another corporation or business. The
appraisal right may be exercised by a stockholder who shall have voted against any of the
foregoing corporate actions proposed in a meeting by making written demand on the
corporation for the%payment of the fair value of his/its shares within 30 days-after the date on
which the vote is taken. Failure to make written demand within such period shall be deemed a
waiver of suchright. If the proposed action is implemented, the corporation shall pay to a
stockholder surrendering his/its stock certificates the fair value of such shares as of the day
prior to the date on which the vote was taken; however, no payment shall be made to any
stockholder unless the corporation has unrestricted retained earnings in its books to cover such
payment. Within ten days after demanding payment for his shares, a dissenting stockholder
shall submit his stock certificates for notation thereon that such shares are dissenting shares,
-~ failing which, his/its appraisal right shall, at the option of the corporation, terminate. Upon -

payment of the purchase price for the shares, the stockholder must transfer his shares to the
corporation.

From the time a demand for payment of fair value until either the abandonment of the corporate
action involved or the purchase of said shares by the corporation, all rights accruing to such
shares, including voting and dividend rights, shall be suspended. If the dissenting stockholder is
not paid the value of the shares within 30 days after the award, his voting and dividend rights

shall be restored.

None of the proposed corporate actiohs qualifies as an instance for a possible exercise by
security holders of their appraisal rights under Title X of the Corporation Code of the

Philippines.
ltem 3. Interest of Certain Persons in or Opposition to Matters to be Acted Upon

(a) There is no matter to be acted upon in which any Director or Executive Officer is
involved or had a direct, indirect or substantial interest.

(b) No Director has informed the Company of his opposition to any matter to be acted upon.



B. CONTROL AND COMPENSATION INFORMATION

Securities and Principal Holde‘rs Thereof

(a) GMA Holdings, Inc. (“the Company”) has 10,000 ‘common shares subscribed and
‘outstanding as of April 30, 2017. Every stockholder shall be entitled to one vote for
each common share held as of the established record date.

(b) All stockholders of record as of the closing of business on April 26, 2017 are entitled to
notice of and to vote at the Company’s Annual Stockholders’ Meeting. :

(c) With respect to the election of directors, a stockholder may vote such number of shares
for as many persons as there are directors to be elected or he may accumulate said
shares and give one candidate as many votes as the number of directors to be elected
or he may distribute them-on the same principle among as many candidates as he shall
see fit; provided, that the total number of votes cast by him shall not exceed the total -
number of shares owned by him multiplied by the whole number of directors to be

elected.
(d) The following are the information on security ownership of certain record and beneficial
owners and management: : ,
Security Ownership of Certain Record and Beneficial Owneré as of April 30, 2017

As of April 30, 2017, the following persons owned at least 5% of the Company’s outstanding
common shares: :

" Titleof |  Name, Address of Name of Beneficial | Citizenship | No. of Percent-
class Record Owner and Owner and Shares | ageof
Relationship with Relationship with | Held Class -

Company Record Owner L
Common | Felipe L. Gozon The Record owner is Filipino 3,330 33.30

Unit 5 5D Tower One, One | the Beneficial Owner
McKinley Place, New '
Bonifacio City, ,

Fort Bonifacio, Taguig City

Common | Gilberto R. Duavit, Jr. The Record owner is Fitipino 3,330 33.30
‘Unit 5 5D Tower One, One | the Beneficial Owner
McKinley Place, New
Bonifacio City,

. - Fort Bonifacio, Taguig City v
Common | Joel Marcelo G. Jimenez The Record owner is Filipino 3,330 33.30

| Unit 5 5D Tower One, One | the Beneficial Owner

McKinley Place, New

Bonifacio City,

! Fort Bonifacio, Taguig City

Total 9,990 99.90

Felipe L. Gozon', Giberto R. Duavit, Jr. and Joel Marcelo G. Jimenez are significant
stockholders of the Company. ,



Security Ownership of Management as of April 30, 2017:

As of April 30, 2017, the Company’s directors and senior officers owned an aggregate of
06,996 common shares of the Company, equivalent to 99.96% of the Company'’s issued and

outstanding common capital stock.

Title of Name of Amount and | Citizenship | Percentage
Class Beneficial Owner Nature of of Class
Beneficial :
‘ Ownership ‘
Common Felipe L. Gozon Direct - Filipino 33.30
- 3,330 ‘ :
Common Gilberto R. Duavit, Jr. Direct - Filipino 33.30
: , 3,330
Common Joel Marcelo G. Jimenez Direct Filipino 33.30
: 3,330 .
Common Artemio V. Panganiban Direct - Filipino .04
‘ 4
Common Jaime C. Laya Direct Filipino .01
1 _
Common Felipe S. Yalong Direct Filipino .01
« 1
Total 99,996 : 99.96

Voting Trust Holders of more than 5%

The Company is not aware of any person holding more than 5% of shares under a voting trust

or similar arrangement.

Changes in Control

The Company is not aware of any arrangement which may have resulted in a change in control
of the Company during the period covered by this report.

Foreign Equity

The Company’s equity (consisting of common shares) are wholly-owned by Filipinos. While the
PDRs issued by the Company may be owned by any person regardiess of citizenship or
nationality, the exercise of which is subject to the nationality restriction under the Philippine
Constitution prohibiting foreign ownership in mass media companies. As a result, the:
Underlying Shares (GMA Network, Inc. common shares) resulting from an exercise of the
PDRs may only be issued to Philippine citizens or corporations, cooperatives or associations
wholly owned and managed by Philippine citizens. Although holders of PDRs will enjoy
gconomic rights upon occurrence of certain events in respect of the Underlying Shares, they
will not have any voting rights in respect of the Underlying Shares. Such voting rights will, until
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exercise of the PDR, be retained and exercised by GHI or the Company. Pending exercise of

the PDRs, the Shares deliverable on exercise of the PDRs shall be owned by and registered in

the name of the Issuer. The Shares underlying the PDRs have been delivered and pledged by

the Issuer to the Pledge Trustee, and held to the order and for the benefit of the Holders as

security for the delivery of the Shares upon exercise of the PDRs pursuant to the Pledge. Until

an exercise of a PDR, the Issuer, as owner of Shares underlying the relevant PDR, will retain -
and exercise such voting rights relating to such Shares.

Item 5. Directors and Executive Officers

Nominees for Election as Members of. the Board of Directors

The following were nominated as members of the Board of Directors for the ensuing year
(2017-2018). : ' ' '

Gilberto R. Duavit, Jr.

Felipe L. Gozon

Joel Marcelo G. Jimenez

Jaime C. Laya (Independent Director)

Artemio V. Panganiban (/ndependent Director)

All the nominees are incumbent directors. The nominees were formally nominated by Gilberto
R. Duavit, Jr. Gilberto R. Duavit, Jr. has no relationship with the nominated independent

directors, Jaime C. Laya and Artemio V. Panganiban.

The Company’'s By-laws provide that all nominations to the Board of Directors shall be
submitted in writing to the Nomination Committee before the date of the regular annual meeting
of the stockholders. The Nomination Committee has reviewed the qualifications of the

nominees and approved the final list of candidates.

The members of the Nomination Committee are as follows:
Felipe L. Gozon (Chairman)
Gilberto R. Duavit, Jr..

Joel Marcelo G. Jimenez
Jaime C. Laya

Board of Directors, Officers and Senior Management

Under the Articles of Incorporation of the Company, the Board of Directors of the Company
comprises five directors, two of whom are independent. The directors have a term of one year
and are elected annually at the Company’s stockholders meeting. A director who is elected to
fill a vacancy holds the office only for the unexpired term of his predecessor. As of April 30,
2017, the Company’s Board of Directors and Senior Management were composed of the

following:



Board of Directors ' Senior Management
) Year Year
Directors and Senior . . Position ios Position
Management Nationality Position was Position . was Age.
Assumed Assumed| .
. s Chairman/
Felipe L. Gozon Filipino Director 2007 N/A N/A 77
Gilberto R. Duavit, Jr. Filipino. | Director 2007 President/Chief Executive Officer 2007 53
Joel Marcelo G. Jimenez: Filipino | Director 2007 N/A N/A 53
o “Chief Financial Officer/Chief
Felipe 8. Yalong " Filipino | Corporate Treasurer 2007 Operating Officer 2012 60.
Artemio V. Panganiban Filipino | independent Director 2009. N/A ) N/A 80
Jaime C. Laya Filipino. | Independent Director 2008 N/A N/A 78
Ronaldo P. Mastrill Filipino | N/A ' Na | Gomptroller/Chief Accounting 2007 | 51
: L Officer . ;
Anna Teresa M, Gozon- S : } ’
Abrogar Filipina CorporatevSecretar}‘/ 2007 N/A N/A 45
Roberto O. Parel Filipino | N/A"- NA g%iﬁreswenm"mp”ame 2013 | 61

The following are descriptions of the business expeﬁence of each of the Company’s-directors,
officers and senior management: :

Felipe L. Gozon, Filipino, 77 years old, is the Chairman of the Board of Directors and Chief
Executive Officer of GMA Network, Inc.

Atty. Gozon is a Senior Partner at the Law Firm of Belo Gozon Elma Parel Asuncion & Lucila.
Aside from GMA Network, Inc., he is also Chairman and CEO of GMA New Media,.Inc. and
FLG Management and Development Corp.; Chairman of Alta Productions Group, Inc., Citynet
Network Marketing and Productions, Inc., Mont-Aire Realty and Development Corp., Philippine
Entertainment Portal, Inc., RGMA Network, Inc., and Justitia Reality and Management Corp.;
President of Gozon Development Corporation, BGE Holdings, Inc., and Lex Realty Corporation;
Director of, among other companies, Philippine Chamber of Commerce and Industry, Chamber
of Commerce of the Philippine Islands; and Vice President/Treasurer of Antipolo Agri-Business
and Land Development Corp. He serves as Chairman of the Board of Trustees of GMA Kapuso
Foundation, Inc., Kapwa Ko Mahal Ko Foundation, Inc., and The Potter and Clay Christian
School Foundation, Inc.; Chairman and President of Gozon Foundation; and Trustee of
‘Bantayog ng mga Bayani Foundation. Gozon is also an Advisory Board Member of the Asian

Television Awards.

Atty. Gozon is a recipient of several awards for his achievements in law, media, public service,
and business, including the prestigious Chief Justice Special Award given by the Chief Justice
of the Philippines (1981), Presidential Award of Merit given by the -Philippine Bar Association
(1990 & 1993), CEQO of the Year given by Uno Magazine (2004), Master Entrepreneur —
Philippines (2004) by Ernst and Young, Outstanding Citizen of Malabon Award for Legal and
Business Management by the Kalipunan ng Samahan sa Malabon (KASAMA) (2005), People of
the Year by People Asia Magazine (2005), Qutstanding Manilan Award in the field of Social
Responsibility and Broadcasting given by the City Government of Manila (2011), Quezon City
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Gawad Parangal Most Outstanding Citizen for 2011 given by the City Government of Quezon
(2011), Tycoon of the Decade Award given by BizNews Asia (2011), Lifetime Achievement
Award given by the UP Alumni Assodciation (2012), Certificate of Recognition given by the Civil -
Aeronautics Board (2012), Personality of the Year for Broadcast Media given by SKAL
International Makati (2013), Outstanding Member-Achiever given by Phi Kappa Phi UP Chapter
(International Honor Society) (2013), Visionary Management CEO Award given by BizNews
Asia (2013), Lifetime Achievement Award given by UP Preparatory High School Alumni (2014),
Entrepreneurship Excellence Award and Best Broadcast CEO Award given by BizNews Asia
(2014), The Rotary Golden Wheel Award for Corporate Media Management given by Rotary
international District 3780 and Quezon City Government (2014), and Global Leadership Award
for Excellence in Media Sector (first Filipino to win the award) given by The Leaders .
International together with the American Leadership Development Association in Kuala Lumpur,
Malaysia (2015). He is also listed among Biz News Asia’s Power 100 (2003 to 2010).

Atty. Gozon earned his Bachelor of Laws degree from the University of the Philippines (among
the first 10 of his class) and his Master of Laws degree from Yale University Law School. He
was admitted to the Bar in 1962, placing 13th in the Bar examinations.

Gilberto R. Duavit, Jr., Filipino, 53 years old, is the President and Chief Operating Officer of.
GMA Network, Inc. He has been a Director of the Company since 1999 and is currently the
Chairman of the Network's Executive Committee. Aside from GMA Network, Inc., he is the
Chairman of the Board of GMA Network Films, Inc. and GMA Worldwide, Inc. He also serves
as President and CEO of GMA Holdings, Inc., RGMA Marketing and Productions, Inc., Film
Experts, Inc., and Dual Management and [nvestments, Inc. He is the President and a Director
of Group Management and Development, Inc.; President and Director of MediaMerge Corp.,
Citynet Network Marketing and Productions, Inc.; Director of RGMA Network, Inc., GMA New
Media, Inc., Alta Productions Group, Inc., Optima Digital, Inc., and Mont-Aire Realty and
Development Corp. He also serves as the President and a Trustee of GMA Kapuso Foundation,
inc. and a Trustee of the Guronasyon Foundation, Inc. and the HERO Foundation. '

Mr. Duavit holds a Bachelor's Degree in Philosophy from the University of the Philippines.

Joel Marcelo G. Jimenez, Filipino, 53 years old, has been a Director of GMA Network, Inc.
since 2002. He is currently the Vice Chairman of the Executive Committee of GMA Network,
Inc., President and CEO of Menarco Holdings, and the Chief Executive Officer of Alta
Productions, Inc. He is a Director of RGMA Network, Inc., GMA New Media, Inc., Scenarios,
Inc., and GMA Worldwide, Inc., besides also being a member of the Board of Directors of
Malayan Savings and Mortgage Bank, and Unicapital Securities, Inc.. He is also a Director of
Nuvoland Philippines, a real-estate development company. He is a Trustee of GMA Kapuso

Foundation, Inc.

He was educated in Los Angeles, California where he obtained a Bachelor's Degree in
Business Administration from Loyola Marymount University. He also obtained a Master's
Degree in Management from the Asian Institute of Management.

10



Felipe S. Yalong, Filipino, 60 years old, is the Executive Vice President ahd Chief Financial |
Officer of GMA Network, Inc. He has been a Director of the Company since 2002. Aside from
GMA Network, Inc., he also serves as Director and Corporate Treasurer of GMA Holdings, Inc.,

Scenarios, Inc:, and GMA Network Films, Inc.; Director of Unicapital, Inc., and Majalco Finance -

and Investments, Inc.; Corporate Treasurer of RGMA Network, Inc., MéediaMerge Corp.; -
Executive Vice President of RGMA Marketing and Productions, Inc.; and Corporate Treasurer
of the Board of Trustees of GMA Kapuso Foundation, Inc.. '

Yalong was named CFO of the Year by ING FINEX in 2013,

He obtained a Bachelor of Science Degree in Business Admin.istration Major in Accounting from
the Philippine School of Business Administration and completed the Management Development -
Program at the Asian Institute of Management. He is a Certified Public Accountant.

Dr. Jaime C. Laya, Filipino, 78 years old, has been an independent Director of GMA Network,
Inc. since 2007. He is the Chairman and President of Philippine Trust Company (Philtrust -
Bank), Director of Ayala Land, Inc., Manila Water Company, Inc., and Philippine AXA Life
Insurance Company, Inc. He alsé serves as Chairman of Don Norberto Ty Foundation, Inc.
and Escuela Taller de Filipinas Foundation, Inc.; Trustee of St. Paul University - Quezon City,
Cultural Center of the Philippines, Metropolitan Museum of Manila, Yuchengco Museum,
Fundacién Santiago, Inc., Ayala -Foundation, Inc., and other foundations. He writes a weekly '

column for the Manila Bulletin.

" He was Minister of Budget, 1975-1981; Minister of Education, Culture and Sports, 1984-86;
Chairman of the Monetary Board and Governor, Central Bank of the Philippines, 1981-1984;
Chairman, National Commission for Culture and the Arts, 1996-2001. He was faculty member
of the University of the Philippines, 1957-1978 and Dean of the College of Business
Administration, 1969-1974. In 1986, he founded J.C. Laya & Co., Ltd. (Certified Public

Accountants and Management. Consultants) later the Philippine member firm of KPMG
International: he served as the firm's Chairman until his retirement in 2004

He earned his BSBA, magna cum laude, University of the Philippines, 1957: M.S. in Industrial.
Management, Georgia Institute of Technology, 1960; Ph.D. in Financial Management, Stanford
University, 1966. He is a Certified Public Accountant.

Chief Justice Artemio V. Panganiban, Filipino, 80 years old, has been an Independent
Director of GMA Network, Inc. since 2007. In 1995, he was named a Justice of the Supreme
Court and in 2005, he was appointed Chief Justice of the Philippines — a position he held until
December 2006. At present, he is also an Independent Director of these listed firms: First
Philippine Holdings Corp., Metro Pacific Investments Corp., Manila Electric Company,
Robinsons Land Corp., GMA Holdings, Inc., Philippine Long Distance Telephone Co., Petron
Corporation, Bank of the Philippine Islands, Asian Terminals, and a regular Director of Joliibee
Foods Corporation. He is also a Senior Adviser of Metropolitan Bank, Chairman, Board of
Advisers of Metrobank Foundation, Adviser of Double Dragon Properties, Chairman of the
Board of the Foundation for Liberty and Prosperity, President of the Manila Cathedral Basilica
Foundation, Chairman Emeritus of Philippine Dispute Resolution Center, Inc., and Member, .
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Advisory Board of the World Bank (Philippines) and of the Asian Institute of Management
Corporate Governance Council. He also is a column writer of The Philippine Daily Inquirer. '

Upon his retirement, he was unanimously conferred a Plaque of Acclamation by the Associate
Justices of the Supreme Court as the “Renaissance Jurist of the 21st Century;” and an Award
of Honor by the Philippine Bar Association. In recognition of his role as a jurist, lawyer, civic
leader, Catholic lay worker, business entrepreneur and youth leader, he had been the recipient
of over 250 other awards from various governments, civic clubs, consumer associations, bar
groups, religious. movements and other non-government organizations, both local and

international.

He obtained his Associate in Arts, “With Highest Honors” and later his Bachelor of Laws, with
cum laude and “Most Outstanding Student” honors from the Far Eastern University. He placed
sixth among more than 4,200 candidates who took the 1960 Bar examinations. He is likewise
the recipient of several honorary doctoral degrees from various universities. . '

Anna Teresa G. Abrogar, Filipino, 45 years old, has been a Director of GMA Network, [nc.
since 2000. She graduated cum laude, BS Management Engineering from Ateneo de Manila
University and obtained her Bachelor of Laws degree from the University of the Philippines
where she graduated valedictorian, cum laude. She later obtained her Master of Laws from

Harvard University.

She is a junidr partner in Belo Gozon Elma Parel Asuncion & Lucila and is an Associate
Professor in the University of the Philippines, College of Law where she taught Taxation and

Legal History.

She is currently Programming. Consuitant to the, Chairman/CEOQ of GMA Network, Inc.and the
President of GMA Films, Inc. and GMA Worldwide, Inc. She is a trustee of GMA Kapuso

Foundation. .

Ronaldo P. Mastrili, Filipino, 51 years old, is the Senior Vice President of GMA Network, Inc.’s
Finance and ICT Departments. He obtained his Bachelor of Science in Business and
Economics degree, major in Accounting from De La Salle University. He attended the Master in
Business Administration Program from the same university and completed the Executive
Development Program of the Asian Institute of Management. He is a Certified Public
Accountarit with expertise in the fields of accounting, auditing, finance, taxation and general
management. He was formerly the Assistant Vice President of Controliership of ABS-CBN and
also served as its Group Internal Auditor before joining GMA Network in March 2001. He also
worked with SGV and Co. in the early part of his career. Mr. Mastrili concurrently holds key
positions in GMA Subsidiaries namely: Comptroller/Chief Accounting Officer of GMA Holdings,
Treasurer of Alta Productions, Director of Script2010 and GMA Kapuso Foundation, and
Comptrolier of GMA Films, GMA Kapuso Foundation and GMA Worldwide. .

Roberto O. Parel, Filipino, 61 years old, has been the Compliance Officer of the Company
since 2012. He is a Partner at the Law Firm of Belo Gozon Elma Parel Asuncion & Lucila, His
practice areas include labor relations, natural resources and intellectual property. He is a
Director of Time-Life International Philippines, Berong Nickel Corporation, Ulugan Nickel
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Corporation, Ulugan Resources Holdings, Inc., Nickeline Resources Holdings, Inc.,' TMM
Management Inc. and Assetlex Development Company, Inc.; Corporate Secretary of Alta
Productions Group, Inc., Scenarios, Inc., Citynet Network Marketing and Productions, Inc. and

GMA Kapuso Foundation, Inc.

He graduated from the University of the Philippines with a Bachelor of Arts degree in
Philosophy and a Bachelor of Laws degree. He was admitted to the Philippine Bar in 1981. Atty.
Parel further pursued legal studies through short programs. at the Center of American and
International Law and the Southwestern Legal Foundation in Dallas, Texas. Later, he attended
a training program on Industrial Property Rights held by the Japan Institute of Invention and
Innovation and the Association for Overseas Technical Scholarship in Tokyo, Japan: ‘

Sianificant Employees:

Although the Company will continue to rely on the individual and collective contributions of their
executive officers, the Company is not dependent on the services of any particular employee.

Family Relationships

Anna Teresa M. Gozon-Abrogar is the daughter of Felipe L. Gozon. Felipe L. Gozon’'s sister,
Carolina L. Gozon Jimenez, is the mother of Joel Marcelo G. Jimenez.

Involvement in Certain Legal Proceedings

To the best of the Company’s knowledge, during the past five years and up to the date of this
Information Statement, there has been no occurrence of any of the following events which are
material to an evaluation of the ability or integrity of any director, person nominated to become
a director, executive officer, or control person of the Company: '

o Any filing of an insolvency or bankruptcy petition by or against any business of which
such person was a general partner or executive officer, either at the time of the

insolvency or within two years prior to that time;

o Any conviction by final judgment in a criminal proceeding, domestic or foreign, or any
pending criminal proceeding, domestic or foreign, of any such person, excluding traffic
violations and other minor offenses;

¢ Any final and executory order, judgment, or decree of any court of competent
jurisdiction, domestic or foreign, against any such person, permanently or temporarily
enjoining, barring, suspending, or otherwise limiting involvement in any type of business,

securities, commodities, or banking activities; and

. Any final and executory judgment of any such person by a domestic or foreign court of
competent jurisdiction (in a civil action), the SEC, or comparable foreign body, or a
domestic or foreign exchange or electronic marketplace or self-regulatory organization,
for violation of a securities or commodities law.
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Resignation of Directors _
No director has resigned or declined to stand for re-election to the Board of Directors since the

date of the initial organization of the Company because of a disagreement with the Company on
matters relating to the Company's operations, policies and practices.

Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

On May 30, 2008, the Company engaged as its legal counsel Belo Gozon Elma Parel Asuncion
& Lucila (“BGEPAL") where Atty. Felipe L. Gozon is a Senior Partner. Atty. Gozon is the
Chairman and one of the major stockholders of the Company. The Company and BGEPAL are -
currently negotiating the fees in relation to the services provided, ensuring that the same is

done on an arm’s length basis.

On July 30, 2007, the Company issued PDRs relating to GMA Network, inc. Common Shares.
The proceeds owing to the selling shareholders of GMA Network, Inc. (“Selling Shareholders”)
whose Common Shares formed the underlying shares of the PDRs in the Company’s Initial .
Public Offering were initially held by the Company then remitted to these Selling Shareholders. .
Please see Note 10 of the Company’s Financial Statements.

Other than the foregoing, the Company has had no material transactions during the past two
years, nor is any material transactiori presently proposed between the Company and parties
that fall outside the definition of “related parties” under SFAS/IAS No. 24, but with-whom the
registrants or its related parties have a relationship that enables the parties to negotiate terms
of material transactions that may not be availed from other, more clearly independent parties on

an arm’s length basis.

ltem 6. Compensation of Directors and Executive Officers

Compensation of Directors and Executive Officers

The followin‘g sets forth the summary of the Company’s compehsation to its executive officers:

Name and Position
Gilberto R. Duavit, Jr.

Felipe S. Yalong
Ronaldo P. Mastrili

President and Chief Executive Officer

Chief Financial Officer/ Chief Operating Officer

Chief Accounting Officer/ Comptroller

Year Salaries Bonuses Other Total
(in (in Income (in
thousands)  thousands) thousands)
CEO and the highest '
compensated officers named 2014 - - - -
above
2015 - - - -
2016 - - - -
2017 - - - -
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(estimate)
Aggregate compensation paid to
ali officers and directors as a 2014 -
group unnamed , ‘
. 2015 - - - _ -
2016 - - - -
2017 o
(estimate) . T ) ) )

No director or officer receives or has received compensation for their services. The By-Laws of
the Company however, provides that each director is entitled to a reasonable per diem
allowance for ‘attendance at each meeting of the Board of Directors. The By-Laws further
provide that the Board may receive and allocate an amount of not more than 10% of the net

income before income tax of the corporation during the preceding year. Such compensation
shall be determined and apportioned among the directors in such manner as the Board may
deem proper, subject to the approval of the stockholders representing at least a majority of the

stockholders.

The Company has no other arrangement with regard to the remuneration of its existing
directors and officers aside from the compensation received as herein stated.

Employment Contracts, Termination of Employment, Change-in-control Arrangements

The directors and executive officers do not have any employment contracts, and are elected to
their respective positions on a yearly basis. The Company has no -compensatory plans or
arrangements with respect to any executive officer that would result from the resignation,
retirement or any other termination of such executive officer's employment.

item 7. Independent Public Accountants

(a) SyCip Gorres Velayo & Co. (“SGV & Co.”) has acted as the Company's external
auditors since 2007. SGV & Co. is being recommended for re-election at the scheduled

Annual Stockholders’ Meeting on May 26, 2017.

(b) Representatives of SGV & Co. for the current year and for the most recently completed
fiscal year are expected to be present at the Annual Stockholders’ Meeting. They will
have the opportunity to make.a statement if they desire to do so and are expected to be

available to respond to appropriate questions.

The Company became publicly.listed with the Philippine Stock Exchange on July 30,
2007. Pursuant to Rule 68 paragraph 3 (b) (iv), the Company has engaged Ms. Marydith
C. Miguel, partner of SGV & Co., to sign the Company’s 2015 audited financial

statements.

(c) Changes in and disagreements with accountants on accounting and financial disclosure.

The Company has not had any disagreements on accounting and financial disclosures
with its current external auditors during the two most recent fiscal years or any

subsequent interim period.
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(d) SGV & Co. professional- fees billed for its 'year-end financial audit of the Company
covering the years 2016, 2015 and 2014 amounted to P75 thousand per year. These
included the fees related to financial audit and services for general tax compliance. No

other fees of any nature were paid.

(e) The Company’s Audit Committee was formed in 2008. The Audit Committee reviews the -
fee arrangements with the external auditor and recommends the same to the Board of

Directors.

The members of the Audit Committee are as follows:

Dr. Jaime C. Laya (Chairman)
Gilberto R. Duavit, Jr.

Chief Justice Artemio V. Panganiban
Felipe S. Yalong (Corporate Treasurer)

item 8.Compensation Plans

No action shall be taken with respect to any plan pursuant to which cash or non-cash
compensation may be paid or distributed.

C. ISSUANCE AND EXCHANGE OF SECURITIES

Item 9. Authorization or Issuance of Securities Other than for Exchange -

No action shall be taken with respect to the authorization or issuance of any securities
otherwise than for exchange for outstanding securities of the Company.

Item 10. Modification or Exchange of Securities
No action shall be taken with respect to the modification of any class of securities of the -

Company, or the issuance or authorization for issuance of one class of securities of the
Company in exchange for outstanding securities of another class.

item 11. Financial and Other Information

In connection with Item 11 hereof, the Company has incorporated by reference the following as
contained in the Management Report prepared in accordance with Rule 68 of the Securities

and Regulation Code:

a. Audited Financial Statements for December 31, 2015 and 2016;

b. Managements Discussion and Analysis or plan of operation; and
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c. Information on business overview, properties, legal proceedings, market price of
securities and dividends paid out, and corporate governance

Item 12. Mergers, Consolidations, Acquisitions and Similar Matters

No action is to be taken with respect to the mergers, consolidations, acquisitions and similar
matters.

Item 13. Acquisition or Disposition of Property

No action is to be taken with respect to the acquisition or disposition of any property.

ltem 14. Restatement of Accounts

No action is to be taken with respect to the restatement of any asset, capital or surplus acco.u.nt
of the Company. ' '

D. OTHER MATTERS

| LT

item 15. Action with Respect to Reports

a. Approval of the Annual Report of Management and the Audited Financial
Statements for the year ending December 31, 2016. '

b. Approval of the Minutes of the Annual Stockholders’ Meeting held on September
30, 2016. The salient matters are summarized as follows:

(1) Approval of the Minutes of the Stockholders’ Meeting held on August 13,

2015.
2) Report of the President
3) Ratification of Acts of the Board of Directors for the Previous Year

(

(

(4) Election of Directors, including the Independent Directors
(5) Election of the External Auditor .

c. Ratification of Acts of the Board of Directors for the previous year

All acts and resolutions of the Board of Directors and Management for the period
covering September 30, 2016 to August 18, 2017 adopted in the ordinary course

of business involving ,
> Approval of borrowings, opening of accounts and bank transactions;

> Appointment of signatories;
> Approval of the minutes of the organizational meeting last August 13,

2015
> Approval of the record date and venue of the Annual Stockholders’

Meeting
> Approval of the Financial Statements
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ltem 16. Matters Not Required to be Submitted

All actions or matters to be submitted in the meeting will require the vote of the security holders.

[tem 17. Amendment of Charter, Bylaws or Other Documents

No action is. to be taken with respect to any amendment of the registrant's charter, by-léws or other
documents. =

{tem 18. Other Proposed Action
(a) Ratification of the Acts of the Board of Directors/Corporate Officers:

(i) Declaration on March 27, 2017 by the Company of cash distribution to
the PDR holders of Php 0.73 per PDR or the same dividend rate that will be paid
by GMA Network, Inc. to its common shareholders, undiminished by the PDR
holders' proportionate share in the. operating cost of GMA Holdings, Inc. The
foregoing cash distribution in the amount of Php 0.73 per PDR shall be
distributed to the PDR Holders as of April 20, 2017 and will be paid out to the
PDR holders on May 16, 2017;

(ii) Declaration on April 8, 2016 by the Company of cash distribution to the
PDR holders of P0.40 per PDR or the same dividend rate that was paid by GMA
Network, Inc. to its common shareholders, undiminished by the PDR holders’
proportionate share in the operating cost of GMA Holdings, Inc. The foregoing -
cash distribution in the amount P0.40 per PDR was distributed to PDR Holders
as of April 25, 2016 and paid out to the PDR holders on May 17, 2016;

iii) Declaration of Cash Dividends of P0.27 per share by GMA Network [nc.
on April 2, 2014 to PDR Holders. The record date for the PDR holders who were
entitled to receive the cash amounts was on April 24, 2014 (Thursday) [the same
record date for GMA Network, Inc. stockholders] and the cash amounts were
distributed to the PDR holders on May 20, 2014 (Tuesday).

(ivy  All acts and resolutions of the Board of Directors and Management for
the period covering September 30, 2016 to May 26, 2017 adopted in the ordinary

course of business involving
> Approval of borrowings, opening of accounts and bank transactions;

> Appointment of signatories;
> Approval of the minutes of the organizational meeting last September

30, 2016
> Approval of the record date and venue of the Annual Stockholders’

Meeting
‘> Approval of the Financial Statements

(b) Election of the Members of the Board of Directors, including two independent
directors for the ensuing calendar year .

(c) Election of the External Auditor
18



Item 19. Voting Procedures

(a) Vote Required: Motions, in general, require the affirmative vote of a majority of the shares
of the Company’s.common stock present and/or represented and entitied to vote. However,
under Philippine law, certain proposed actions may require the vote of at least two thirds
(2/3) of the outstanding capital stock of the Company. The manner of voting is non-
cumulative, except as to the election of directors.

(b) Method: Straight and cumulative voting. In the election of directors, the five (5) nominees
garnering the highest number of votes shall be elected directors. The stockholder may vote
such number of shares for as many person as there are directors to be elected, or he may
cumulate said shares and give one candidate as many votes as the number of directors to
be elected, or he may distribute them on the same principle among as many candidates as
he shall see fit; provided, the total number of votes cast by him shall not exceed the number
of shares owned by him multiplied by the number - of directors to be elected.

If there are more than five nominees, voting shall be done by secret ballot. If there are only
five nominees, voting shall be done by a show of hands. :

The Corporate Secretary or the Secretary of the meeting shall be responsible for validating
the votes if the voting is done by secret baliot. The Corporate Secretary or the Secretary of
the meeting shall likewise be responsible if the voting is done by a show of hands.

Other than the nominees’ election as directors, ho director, executive officer, nominee or
associate of the nominees has any substantial interest, direct or indirect by security holdings or
otherwise in any way of the matters to be taken upon during the meeting. The Company has not
received any information that an officer, director or stockholder intends to oppose any action to

be taken at the Annual Stockholders’ Meeting.

Upon written request of the stockholdefs, the Company undertakes to furnish said
stockholder with a copy of the SEC Form 17-A free of charge. Any written request for a
copy of the SEC Form 17-A shall be addressed to the following: : :

GMA HOLDINGS, INC.

9/F GMA NETWORK CENTER
EDSA corner Timog Avenue
Diliman, Quezon City

Attention: Ronaldo P. Mastrili:
Chief Accounting Officer
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Copies of the latest Unaudited Interim Financial Statements will be made available
to each stockholder at least five (5) calendar days before the Annual Meeting.
Such report can be viewed at the GMA Network Inc.’s official website and hard
copies of the company’s ifs and management discussion may be available upon
request five (5) calendar days before the said meeting.

SIGNATURE PAGE
After reasonable inquiry and to the best of my knowledge and belief,. I certify that

the information set forth in this report is true, complete and correct. This report is signed in
the City of Makati on UL 1 4 209017 |

GMA HOLDINGS, INC.
By:

Aﬁi\iaozou ABROGAR

Corporate Secretary
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MANAGEMENT'S REPORT

l. Business

GMA Holdings, Inc., (the “Company” or “GHI") was incorporated on February 15, 2006. As a
holding Company, its primary purpose is to invest in, purchase, or otherwise acquire own, hold,
use, sell, assign, transfer, mortgage, pledge, exchange, or otherwise dispose of real and
personal property; including, but not limited to stocks, bonds and debentures. The Company

has. no subsidiaries.

The Philippine Deposit Receipts (“PDRs”) issued by the Company were listed with the
Philippine Stock Exchange (“PSE”) on July 30, 2007. '

GHI does not engage in any other business or purpose except in relation to the issuance of the

PDRs relating to the GMA Network, Inc. common shares (“Common Shares”) for as long as the -~

PDRs are outstanding. GHI has undertaken to perform the obligations under, the PDRs and the
acquisition and holding of the Common Shares underlying the PDRs, which includes
maintaining the listing with-the PSE, and maintaining its status as a Philippine person for as .
long as Philippine law prohibits ownership of Common Shares by non-Philippine persons.

The registered office address of the Company is Unit 5D Tower One, One McKinley Place, New '
Bonifacio Global City, Fort Bonifacio, Taguig City. - "

Transactions with/and or dependence on related parties:

Not applicable.

Employees

The Company had no full-time employees as of April 30, 2017 and does not anticipate in hiring
any employees within the next 12 months. No labor unions are present within the Company.

1. Properties

The Company does not own any real property. The Company does not lease any real property
and does not intend to acquire any within the next 12 months.

1. Legal Proceedings

The Company is not, and has not been, a party to any legal proceeding.
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V. Market for Issuer's Cdmmon Equity and Related Stockholder Matters

Market Information

The Company first offered PDRs relating to GMA Network, Inc. Common Shares on July 30,
2007. These PDRs were listed on the Philippine Stock Exchange on the same date.

2016 Stock Prices (GMAP)
Period in Highest Lowest
2015 Closing Closing
1Q 7.20 6.00
2Q 7.20 6.10
3Q ‘ 6.36 6.00
4Q i 6.20 5.85

The Company’s Philippine Deposit Receipts have been listed with the Philippine Stock
Exchange since 2007. The price information as of the close of the latest practicable trading
date, July 13, 2017, is P6.05 for GMAP (PDRs).

Holders

The total number of shareholders as of April 30, 2017 was seven. The number of shares
subscribed as of April 30, 2017 was 10,000 or P100,000.00. All the common shareholders of

are listed hereunder:

Name of Shareholder No. of Shares Subscribed Percentage of Ownership
Felipe L. Gozon 3,330 33.30
Gilberto R. Duavit, Jr. 3,330 33.30
Joel Marcelo G. Jimenez 3,330 33.30
Artemio V. Panganiban ' : 4 .04
Manuel P. Quiogue 4 .04

- Jaime C. Laya 1 01
Felipe S. Yalong 1 .01
Total 10,000 100.00

Dividend Information

Dividends shall be declared only from the surplus profits of the corporation and shall be payable
at such times and in such amounts as the Board of Directors shall determine, either in cash,
shares or property of the Company, or a combination of the three, as said Board of Directors
shall determine. The declaration of stock dividends, however, is subject to the approval of at
least two-thirds of the outstanding capital stock. No dividend which will impair the capital of the

Company shall be declared.
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Distribution of GMA Network, Inc. Cash Dividends to the Company’s PDR Holders

On March 27, 2017, the Company approved a cash distribution to the-PDR holders of Php 0.73
per share or the same dividend rate that will be paid by GMA Network, Inc. to its common,
shareholders, undiminished by the PDR holders’ proportionate share in the operating cost of
GMA Holdings, Inc.. The foregoing cash distribution in the amount of Php 0.73 per PDR shalt
be distributed to the PDR holders as of April 20, 2017 and will be paid out to the PDR holders

on May 16, 2017.

On April 8, 2016, the Company approved a cash distribution to the PDR holders of P0.40 per
PDR or the same dividend rate that was paid by GMA Network, Inc. to its common
shareholders, undiminished by the PDR holders’ proportionate share in the operating cost of
GMA Holdings, Inc. The foregoing cash distribution in the amount P0.40 per PDR was
distributed to PDR Holders as of April 25, 2016 and was paid out to the PDR holders on May-

17, 2016.

On August 25, 2015, the Company approved a cash distributibn to PDR holders of P0.25 per
share, in relation to dividends declared by GMA, totaling P211.75 million to all shareholders of
record as of April 24, 2015. These were remitted to PDR holders on May 19, 2015.

On April 2, 2014, the Company approved a cash distribution to PDR holders of P0.27 per share,
in relation to dividends declared by GMA, totaling P231.53 million to all shareholders of record
as of April 24, 2014. These were remitted to PDR holders on May 20, 2014.

Cash Dividends to Common Shareholders

On March 27, 2017, the BOD approved the Company’s declaration and distribution of Php.
1,000,000.00 cash dividends from the retained earnings of the Company as of December 31,
2016 and will be paid out to the Company’s commons stockholders on or before May 8, 2017.

On April 8, 2016, the BOD approved the Company’s declaration and distribution of Php 600
thousand dividends from the retained earnings of the corporation as of December 31, 2015 and
was paid out to the Company’s common stockholders on May 17, 2016.

On August 25, 2015, the BOD approVed the Company’s declaration and distribution of Php 500
thousand from the retained earnings of the corporation as of December 31, 2015. This was paid
out to the Company’s common stockholders on October 21, 2015.

The company has no dividend declaration in 2014 and 2013.

The Company has not and will not engage in any other business or purpose except in relation
to the issuance of the PDRs relating to the underlying Common Shares for as long as the PDRs

are outstanding.

Any cash dividends distributed in respect of Common Shares underlying the PDRs received by
the Company shall be applied towards its operating expenses then due for the preceding and
current year. A further amount equal to the operating expenses in the preceding year shall be
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sot aoide to mest operating or other expanses for the succeeding year. Amounts remaining in
excess of such requirements shall be distributed pro rata amongst the outstanding PDRs.

Whenever the Company.shall receive or become entitled to receive from the GMA Network, Inc.
any distribution in respect of the Common Shares which consists of a free distribution of
Common Shares, the Company shall grant additional PDRs to holders in respect of such

distributions.

Whenever the Company shall receive or become entitled to receive from the GMA Network, Inc.
any distribution in securities (other than Common Shares) or in other property (other than cash)
in respect of the Common Shares subject to the PDRs, the Company shall forthwith procure
delivery of such securities or other property pro rata to PDR holders or otherwise to the order of
the PDR holder, subject to compliance with applicable laws and regulations in the Philippines.

There are no restrictions on the Company’s ability to pay dividends on common equity.

Recent Sales of Unregistered or Exempt Securities

No sale of unregistered or exempt' securities of the Company has occurred within the pastvthree
years.

V. . Management's Discussion and Analysis or Plan of Operation.

The following discussion should be read in conjunction with the Financial Statements of the
Company that are incorporated into this Information Statement by reference. Such Financial
Statements have been prepared in accordance with Philippine GAAP.

As discussed in the previous section, the Company has not and will not engage in any.other
business or purpose except in relation to the issuance of the PDRs relating to the underlying
GMA Network, Inc. Common Shares for as long as the PDRs are outstanding.

Any cash dividends or other cash distributions distributed in respect of Common Shares
received by the Company (or the Pledge Trustee on its behalf) shall be applied toward the
operating expenses then due (including but not limited to applicable taxes, fees and
maintenance costs charged by the Philippine Stock Exchange) of the Company (the “Operating
Expenses”) for the current and preceding year (as certified by an independent auditor). A
further amount equal to the operating expenses in the preceding year: (as certified by an
independent auditor) (the “Operating Fund”) shall be set aside to meet operating or other
expenses for the succeeding year. Any amount in excess of the aggregate of the Operating
Expenses paid and the Operating Fund for such period (as certified by the independent auditor
of the PDR lssuer) shall be distributed to Holders pro rata on the first Business Day after such

cash dividends are received by the Company.

On April 8, 2016, the Company approved a cash distribution to the PDR holders of P0.40 per
PDR or the same dividend rate that was paid by GMA Network, Inc. totaling to Php 338.54
mitlion to all shareholders of record as of April 25, 2016. These were remitted to the PDR

holders on May 17, 2016.
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On March 30, 2015, the Company approved a cash distribution to PDR holders of P0.25 per
share, in relation to dividends declared by GMA, totaling P211.75 million to all shareholders of
record as at April 24, 2015. These were remitted to PDR holders on May 19, 2015. '

On April 2, 2014, the Company approved a cash distribution to PDR holders of P0.27 per share,
in relation to dividends declared by GMA, totaling P231.53 million to all shareholders of record
as at April 24, 2014. These were remitted to PDR holders on May 20, 2014.

%

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

The Company's key performance-.indicators are focused on the dividends it receives to meet -
PDR holders’ expectations and monitor cash and cash equivalents levels to meet its obligations
with respect to the Company’s current and preceding year’s operation.

Results of Operations of GMA Holdings Inc.

For the years ended December 3 1, 20?r 6 and 2015

GMA Holdings Inc. ended the year with a total comprehensive income amounting to P1.05
million, a reversal from last year's P91 thousand total comprehensive loss due to this year’s
unrealized gain on Available-for-sale (AFS) investment of P20 thousand, a reversal from last
year's unrealized loss.of P726 thousand, brought about by changes in its fair value. Likewise,
et income after tax amounted to P1.03 million, an increase of P397 thousand from last year's
net income after tax of P635 thousand mainly due to higher revenues coupled with lower
operating expenses. This year’s revenues reached P2.51 million, an improvement of 17% or
P363 thousand from last year's level of P2.14 million mainly brought about by the increase in
exercise fees generating P508 thousand from the conversion of 11,387,000 PDR shares to
common shares compared with P89 thousand from the 1,995,900 PDR shares converted
during the same period of last year. Interest income, however, declined to P2.00 million in 2016
versus P2.05 million in 2015 due to lower interest income earned on cash placement.

Operating expenses for the year 2016 totaled P1.06 million vis-a-vis P1.09 million in 2015
mainly due to the decrease in professional fees to P308 thousand versus P400 thousand in
2015. On the other hand, listing fees amounted to P614 thousand, an increase of 7% as
compared with P576 thousand in 2015 due to the offshoot of higher market cap. Local business
tax went up to P32 thousand from last year's P20 thousand due to higher 2015 tax base used

for 2016 payment.

On March 27, 2017, the Board of Directors approved the Company’s cash dividend declaration
of P1.00 million to its common stockholders from the retained earnings of the Company as of
December 31, 2016.

Financial Condition. Total assets amounted to P48.71 million, a tad higher than last year's
P48.22 million primarily due to the increase in accounts receivable caused by more conversion

of PDR shares to common shares in 2016.
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For the vears ended December 31, 2015 and 2014

GMA Holdings Inc. ended the year with a pre-tax income of P1.05 million, an increase of P443
thousand from last year's pre-tax income of P607 thousand mainly due to higher revenues
despite higher operating expenses. Likewise, net income after tax amounted to P635 thousand
versus P350 thousand net income after tax in 2014. This year's revenues reached P2.14
million, an improvement of 30% or P490 thousand from last year’s level of P1.65 million mainly
brought about by the climb in interest income of P2.05 million. For 2015, a total of P2.00 million
PDR shares were converted to common shares which generated exercise fees of P89 thousand
vis-a-vis P9.16 million PDR shares in 2014, for an exercise fee of P409 thousand.

Operating expenses inched up by5% to P1.09 million from P1.05 million in 2014 due to higher:
professional fees partly negated by lower PSE listing fees and miscellaneous expenses.
Professional fees settled at P400 thousand, 95% more than the P205 thousand posted a year
ago which included payment to BGE for the amendment of Articles of Incorporation (to
incorporate complete address). On the other hand, listing fees of P576 thousand dropped by
17% from PB90 thousand in 2014 as an offshoot of lower market cap.

On April 8, 2016, the BOD approved the company's declarétion and distribution of P600
thousand dividends from the retained earnings of the corporation as of December 31,2015 and
will be paid out to the Company’s common stockholders on May 17, 2016. :

Financial Condition. Total assets amounted to P48.52 million, a tad lower from last year's
P48.91 million primarily due to the decrease in the fair market value of Available-for-sale

investment (under non-current asset).

For the vears ended December 31, 201 4 and 2013

GMA Holdings Inc. ended the year with a pre-tax income of P607 thousand, a turnaround from
last year’s losses of P139 thousand as a result of higher revenues coupled with lower operating
expenses. Likewise, net income after tax amounted to P350 thousand, an increase of P730
thousand from P380 thousand loss in 2013. This year's revenues reached P1.65 million, an
improvement of 37% or P446 thousand from last year's level of P1.21 million mainly brought
about by the conversion of 9.16 million PDR shares to common shares versus none in

comparative period.

On the other hand, operating expenses of P1.05 million decreased by 22% or P299 thousand
from P1.34 million in 2013 on account of lower professional fees and listing fees. Listing fees of
P690 thousand declined by 14% or P109 thousand as an offshoot of lower market cap.
Professional fees for the services of law firm, trust fees and audit fees went down by 42% to
only P280 thousand as a result of the reduced biling for legal and other corporate

housekeeping services.

On March 30, 2015, the'mana_gement approved cash dividend declaration of P500 thousand to
stockholders of record as at December 31, 2014.

26



Financial Condition. Total assets totaled P48.91 million, a tad higher than last year's P48.29
million due to purchase of TIER Il note, transferring P21.00 million cash equivalents to
Available-for-sale investment measured at fair value. of P21.80 million. :

KEY VARIABLE AND OTHER QUALITATIVE OR QUANTITATIVE FACTORS

Vi,

vil.

Trends, demands, commitments, events or uncertainties that will have a material
impact on the issuer's liquidity. o

As of December 31, 2016, there were no known trends, demands, commitments,
events or uncertainties that will have a material impact on the issuer’s liquidity.

Events that will trigger direct or contingent financial obligation that is material to the
company, including any default or acceleration or an obligation. g

As of December 31, 2016, there were no events which may trigger a‘diredt or
contingent financial obligation that is material to the Company. : .

Material off-balance sheet transactions, .arrangements, obligationsA (including -

‘contingent obligations), and other relations of the company with unconsolidated

entities or other persons created during the reporting period.

There were no off-balance sheet transactions, arrangements, obligations (including
contingent obligations), and other relations of the company with unconsolidated
entities or other persons created during the reporting period.

Material commitments for capital expenditures, the general purpose of such
commitments and the expected sources of funds for such expenditures.

For 2016, there were no material commitments for capital expenditures.

Any known trends, events or uncertainties that have had or that are reasonably
expected to have a material favorable or ~unfavorable impact on net
sales/revenuesfincome from continuing operations.

The Company’s results of operations depend largely on its ability to meet PDR
holders’ expectations from the dividends it receives and to monitor cash and cash
equivalents levels to meet its obligations with respect to the Company’s current’and
preceding year’s operation. There are no known trends, events or uncertainties that
are reasonably expected to have a material favorable or unfavorable impact on net

sales/revenues/income from continuing operations.

Significant elements of income or loss that did not arise from the Company’s .
continuing operations.

As of December 31, 2016, there were no significant eléments of income or loss that
did not arise from the issuer’s continuing operations.

Causes for Material Changes in the Financial Statements
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Balance Sheet (December 31, 2016 vs. December 31, 2015)

o . Cash and cash equivalent increased by P42 thousand to P26.89 million a;s a
result of interest received from Available-for-sale investment added to cash in
bank and collection of accounts receivable.

Current liabilities likewise increased by P40 thousand to P47.68 million, due'to‘
unpaid liabilities for professional and audit fees.

viil. Seasonal aspects that had a rﬁaterial effect on the financial condition or results of
operations. -

There are no séasonal aspects that had a material effect on :the financial condition
or results of operations.

INTERIM PERIODS

Copies of the latest unaudited Interim Financial Statements will be made available to
each stockholder at least five (5) calendar days before the Annual Meeting. Such report
can be viewed at the GMA Network Inc.’s official website and hard copies of the
company’s ifs and management discussion may be available upon request five (5)

calendar days before the said meeting.

VI Corporate Governance

The Board of Directors has established a set of policies and initiatives to ensure that GMA
Holding's business practices are compliant with the best practices in corporate governance. The
Company has adopted a Revised Manual on Corporate Governance to institutionalize the
Company’s adherence to these principles. This Revised Manual clearly sets out the principles
of good management and defines the specific responsibilities of the Board, the Board
Committees, and management within the over-all governance framework.

The Revised Manual sets out the principles of good management and defines the specific
responsibilities of the Board, the Board Committees, and Management within the over-all

governance framework.

The Revised Manual conforms to the requirements of the Philippine Securities and Exchange
Commission and covers policies, among others:

(a) independent directors, (b) key board committees (e.g. Executive Committee, Nomination
Committee, Audit Committee, Compensation and Remuneration Committee); (c) independent
auditors, (d) internal audit, (e) disclosure system of company's governance policies, (f)
stockholder rights, (g) monitoring and assessment, and (h) penalties for non-compliance.

On November 6, 2012, the Board designated a Compliance Officer, Atty. Roberto O. Parel, who
at the same time holds the designation of Vice-President. The Compliance Officer is
responsible for monitoring compliance by the Company with the provisions and requirements of

good corporate governance.
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Based on the Revised Manual on Corporate Governance dated July 31, 2014 as well as the
Company's Annual Corporate Governance Report for 2015 which are adopted herein as filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission, there has been no deviations from the

Company’s Manual as of date.

VIl. Financial Statements

Kindly see attached Audited Financial Statements.
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GMA HOLDINGS, INC.

Unit 5-D Tower One, One McKinley Place, New Bonifacio Global City, Fort Bonif

' STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY
FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Securities and Exchange Commission
SEC Building, EDSA Greenhills.
Mandaluyeng, Metro Manila

The management of GMA Holdings, Inc. is responsible for the preparation .an
presentation of the financial statements including the additional components attached the

the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, in accordance ‘with Philippine
Reporting Standards. This responsibility includes designing and implementing internal
relevant 1o the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements that are-fr
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, selecting and applying ap
accounting policies, and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstan

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the’ Company’s:
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable matters related to going < cern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management cither intends to ligiidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to-do so C

he Board of Directors is responsible for overseeing the Comp

The Board of Directors reviews and approves the finan
components attached therein, and submiits the same:to th

SyCip Gorres Velayo & Co., the independent auditors a
examined, the financial statements of the company in a
Auditing, and in its report to the stockholders, hasexp
preseration upon completion of such examination. '

FEIIPE L. GOZON
Chairman of the Board

President

»4-;’ :

hief FinancialfO

Signed this 27" day of March 2017.
" GMA HOLDINGS; INC.

saal NG ARBRESS: GMA Natwork Center, EDSA cor. Timog Ave., Diliman, Quez
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- SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me this \’\ -day of April 2017 at Makati
City, affiants exhibiting to. me their competent evidence of identities as follows:

Name

Felipe L. Gozon
Gilberto R. Duavit
Felipe S. Yalong

Doo. No. _I9
Page No.

Book NO !Q ¢
Series of 2017

Valid ID

Issued.on/lssued at
Passport No. EB7372600 Feb. 13, 2013/DFA, Manila
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TREASURERS CERTIFICATIO N

1, FELIPE 8. YALONG, of legal age, Filipino and with office address at GMA. .("_lcn"npl@‘xg
EDSA comer Timog, Diliman, Quezon City, after being sworn in accordance with Jaw,
hereby certify that: S

cer of GMA Holdings, Inc., a corporation duly organized and existing
under and by virtue of the laws of the Republic of the Philippines under SEC Certificate
of registration CS200602356 with the principal office at Unit §D Tower One, Ong
Mclkinley Place, New Bonifacio Global City, Fort Bonifacio, Taguig City. c
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2. The Creneral Form for Financial Statements (“GFFS”) diskette submitted contains the
same basic and material data in the Andited Financial Statements of the Corporation.
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with the re portorial requirements of the SEC.
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GENERAL EORNFORFINANGIAL STATEMENTS

e et

WAME OF CORPORATION: ~ GMAHOLDINGS, INC. I
CURRENT ADDRESS: 3D Towey Qite; One Moltiniey Ptace, fiaw Bonifacio Global Clty, Taguig Cify -
TEL.NO.  9827777]oc 8001/8689 Y O
COMPANY TYPE:  FRRIGCOMPANY oo . pSiC: - ]
If these are hased on consofidated financlal stafements, please.50 dicate in the caption. T
' Tahle 3. Cash Flow Statements
o ot 2015 | 2014

FINANCTAL D ATA

(in Phitipping Paeo)

SRS FLOWS FROW OPERATING ACTIVITES, oo -
_Nw-_mw;(kgﬁ,sﬁiﬁiﬁ.i@ﬂ@s’gmmﬁwﬂwmm__‘w. S
Adjustmerits io Reconclle Net Income fo Natcash.Provided by 'O[garant_l_l_g_ﬁ_cy_ﬁm ________ [ I —
Depreciation. _ R — e .
Amortzatlon, specify: I L T
others, spocly,  TOSSRGIE
Tnierestexpense and bank charges I
inferestreceived. —_
interest paid [SUR N .
. Thcoms taxes paid e R (405,249) {410,956 {266,745}
TWitsdown of Froperty, Plant-and Eqiiipment’ T [ - [VE—— |
Changee in.Asgels and [Fallities: i i
Decrease (Ingrease} in:
Receiyqp[eg . [ S {339,?30) 15.550 4@9
Prepaid Tax. . “,_:_,_,__-,a.,_..ﬁﬂ“v"’?g) . (b4,126) (96,512
e, she S T T B
IR S

e rr———— T

e ey

__....;—-aw_a_,_—_,.,,_..,..——————_‘,__w_._d-—_‘.._'_-———«

S

e

{ncrease {Decresss) In: .
wecounts payable and acorued expenses

Withnolding taxes payable . e PR
Due fo shareholders [

Others; specify:

e e s

| e e sta i

K HeT Casli Provided by (Used in). pera’ﬂﬁﬁ"f'k?tﬁiiié’é?@ﬁnﬁ?iﬁé?ﬁ@:"‘ 1 BATET. ~TTEB0,475 |
CASH FLOWS, FROM INVEST!NG.ACTN!TIES .
(Increase, Decrease n-Long-Term Receivables | E— _ E——
(h,mreas,e)zDec,x'ease'in;:investmenl- o R
EM@;@[{A’Mit‘rons‘ldo'F}roper v, Plant, and Equipient ' ]
Oftiers, spacily ____ — —
- O— e

“'Eﬂma'éﬁﬁféﬁl'wwgéﬂn] nve‘slsﬁﬁ‘lﬁ:“tﬁi!ﬂé?ﬁmﬁﬁﬁ@“ﬁw—s}”“"’" '
FRSHFLOWE FROW FINARCING RETINVITIES ’ "
Proceeds from:
fong-termDebt
Jssuance of wecurilies

“Diners, specify:

Paymsnts of:
{Loang}
Long-teiry Debt )

[Stotk SU
Dthers, speciiy.{

"3)‘__“’_____,_ »
gaflveentry): .

Paymentof cash
Paymeniy L8
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et TEREASE IR CASH AND CARH EQU
Cash and Cash t

A

46,648,541
T

1)

...... D

N —

26,685,221

Bocinning OFYE8T o

TRATRAT

ST E g AT

B i

A e ety



GENERAL FORM FOR FINANC!AL

NAME OF CORPORATION:

TATEMENTS
AHOLDINGS, INC.

bD ‘i ower-ong, Dne Mokinley Place, New. Bonifac

Control No.:
Farm Type.

QURRENT ADDRESS:
TEL, NOS Gga-7717 loval 8001/8885 FAX NO.
COMPANY TYPE ;. Holﬁmg Company - ¢ v_
If these sro.based an cansolidated mmww statements, please so indicale in the C(’p!loﬁ - T
: ) lab!nil Statar nnn& oft,hangos in Equlw
~ _ F_ i P/rl’wpmc Pa>o) o - o
ot Dald — - Unreatized Gatn {Loss)
FINANGIAL DATA GCapltl Stosk - f‘“ i:]’ﬁ‘{‘;':;'t;‘*“‘ R““s ’ ‘:Z";;‘r‘t" 1’)‘“"::‘1‘;2 on AFS m(;«fg;:tmu . et] Rotained Eamings TOTAL
i Balance 2014 {60.000-| i T 531,451 536,814 | 171,265 |
,,,,, AL eregllgﬂuprfs) " .
A2 Char Clﬁanue;emﬁ_g_mrugg_ﬁ_mv e . o » e —
B. Restaied Ba} 1ee - . : R R . I )
C.8 i it SR F— — e [ I
C.t Surplus (Defuj) on-Revaluation of
Properties - -
.2 Surplus (Ueflclt) on-Revalualion.of
Investments o S L 5
.5 Currenay Trsnslalion. Differances [ WSS R . S
o C4 Dther & rnlus (cw—cva R P .
| 4.1 Other qomprekengivedos i | (725,928
_ W“__.,__CALZ_,»,__«H_;_‘._#__F___ I I — .
. 4.3 . S — —
CA.4 [ D SRR I I e — e
245 : [ IO S S RSP ——
o FL&( t lncome (Loss) forthe Penod 635,193 635,193
L Dw!dends__(g)eqaiive entry) I {500,000} {500,0801
_Ap_pgpum.u_{or (specify) -
w__L 1 — o [
i F.2 [ R - ST IO
SO i — N - R
b4 — ——
FS — - ]
swugmce otCa 2 of Canltal Stogk__ e - S A -
. Cominon Stock e T — [ I I -
. (;.2, Preferred Slock. % S S A e .
| G3 Others o .
1. Balance. 2015 100,000, 194477} 678,007 480530
#_ﬂmmw&ngnﬂ_musj_;__,_ . , —
FL2. Gharoes:In Accounting Peficy. ] o - i

I]. Jestated Balance

o, B Su(wg,
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’lI*l’Sl%)I’ENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
(M Holdings, Inc.

51 Tower Ong, One Mekinley Place
New Global Ronifacio City

Fort Bonifacio, T aguig City

Report on the Audit of the Tinancial Statements

Opinion

e financial statements of GMA Holdings, Inc. (the Compai y), which compt ise the

as at December 3 1, 2016 and 7015, and the statements of o(n‘nprc;;hensiwe
equity and statements. of cash flows for each of the three years in the
He financial statements, including a summary of

We have audited th

staternents of financial position
income, statements of changes i
period ended December 31, 2016, and notes o1
significant accounting policies.

In our opinjon, the accompanying financia) statements present fairty, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Company as at Degember 31, 2010 and 2015, and its finapcial performance and its cash
flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2016 in accordance with Philippiae
Financial Reporting Standards (PFR3s). '

Basis for Opinien
rdance with Philippine Standards on Auditing (PSAs). Our _
responsibilities under those standards are further deseribed in the Auditor's Respors ibilities for the Audit
of the Financial Statemernts section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance
with the Code of Ethics for profossional Accountants in the Philippines (Code of Ethics) together with the
ethical requirements that are relevantto OU audit of the financial statements i the Philippines, and we
have fulfilled our other ethical resgonsib"ﬂiti@s these requirements and the Code of
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we propriate {0 provide

basis for our opinion.

We conducted aur audits in-acco

in accordance with
have obtained is eufficient and ap

Key Andit Wiatter

s that, i our pmfesslonaijudgrrmnt: welrg of most significance in our
addressed W the congext of our

These matters Wek

Key audit matters are those matier
audit of the fipancial statemets of the current period.

audit of the financial statements as @ whele, and in forming OB opjnion ;'i:!:a‘es.r_@o 4 and we o not ;providc‘. a
separate opinion o1 these matters. ¥or the matter below, oW dff-ﬁ(;:f.'\p’ti_(}gﬁf how owr audit mi.ch’esaqsdlgbslz
matter 1S provided that contest. . o BT

P
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We have futfilled the l‘esponsibili’[:icsfdc}rscri.bfzd. in the duditor’s Responsibil ities for the Audit of the
Fz'nancz‘al'St‘arements section of our repoit, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit
included the performance of proedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures

performed to address the matiers elow, provide the basis for our audit opinion or the ascompanying
financial statements.

Fair Valuation of Invesiment in Unquoted Debt Security Classified as Available-for-Sale Investment

As at December 31, 2016, the Company has an Available-for-Sale (AFS) investment in an unquoted debt
security amounting 10 $20,825,204, The valuation of this investpient is 2 key audit mattor as it is material
to the financial statemeuts, ropresenting 43% of the. Company’s total assets as al DPecember 31, 2010, and
its valuation invelves Management’s exercise of judgment and the use of estimates. The Company used
the discounted cash flow model to value the investment, and the discount rates used were based on the
spot yield urve derived from government securities of different tenots plus an estimate of the
counterparty’s cradit spread. The Company’s disclosures on the fair value of the AFS investment are
included in Notes 7, 13 and 14 1o the finaneial statements. '

Audit Response

We traced the ferms (e.g. prineipal amount, interest rate, and repayment dates) used in the Company’s
valuation to the investment agreement. We reviewed the nputs ased in determining the discount rates
based on observable yields of benchmark government seourities and credit rating of the counterparty. We
tested the mathematical acouTacy of the Company’s caleulation. We also assessed the Com pany’s
disclosures on the fair value measurement of the A8 investment based on the requ irements of PERS 13,

Fair Value Measurement. ;

Other Inform ation

Management is responsible for the other inforraation, The other information compriges the information
included in the SEC Form 2018 (Definitive Information Statement), SEC Form 17-A and Annual Report
for the year ended December 31, 2016, but does not include the financial statements and our-auditor’s
report thereon. The SEC Form 20-18 (Definitive Informatiof gtgtement), SEC Foim 17-A avd Annual

Report for the year ended December 3 [,2016 are expected 0 be made available to us after the date of this
auditor’s report. ‘

Our opinion on the financial statements doos not cover the other information and we will pot express any

form of assurance conelusion thereot.

statements, our mspousibili.ty is to read the other
able and, in qing 50,-consider whether the other

ats or our knowledge obtained inthe

In connection with our audits of the financial
information identified-above when it becomes avall
information is materially inconsistent with the financial stateme
audits, ot otherwise appears (0 be materially misstated.

»
y
s
t
3
i
f:




- pgilding o better -
weor kg worid

B

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Staternents

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair priesentation of the financial statements in

accordance with PE RSs, and for such internal control as management determines Is necessary t0 enable

the prepatation ‘of financial statements that are Free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or

SITOL. ,

aring the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
jcable, matiers related t0 going concern and using the

to liquidate the Conmpany of to ceast

In prep
continug as a going concern, disclosing, as appl
accounting uniess manages nent either intends

going concetn basis of
alternative but 10 do so.

operations, Of Iias no realistie
eing the Compmy’s,ﬁnanoial peporting provess.

Those charged with governance are responsible tor overse

Auditor’s Respousihiiities fox the Audit of the Tinancial Staten ents
Our objectives are 1o obtain reasonable agsurance. about whether the financial statements as & whole are
free from matetial misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reagonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is nota guarpitee that an
audit conducted n accordance with PSAs will afways detect @ material misstatement when it exists.
Misstaterments cail atise from fraud or emor and are considered M aterial if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken o the
basis of these financial statements.

dit in accordance with PSAs, we exercise pro’fessional}udgmem and maintain

Ag part of an au
ticism throughout the audit. We also:

professional skep

[dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the fnancial statements, whether due to fraud
or errot, design and perform eudit procedures responsive to fhose risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate 10 provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting 4 material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from esror, as raud may involve

collusion, forgery. intentional omissions, misrepresentations, Of the override of internal control.

trol relevant to the av dit In order to design audit procedures

Obtain an understanding of internal con
e of expressing an opinion on the

(hat are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpos
offectiveness of the Company’s ipternal control.
priateness of aocounting policies used dnd the reasona bleness of accounting

o Byaluate the appro
losures made by rana gement.

estimates and related disc

o Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concein basis of accounting and,
pased on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a goitig concert.
1f we conclude that & material uncerainty exists, we are required O i_fcl.f*’aa\,if af{ention in our auditer’s

report to the related disclosures in the financial statements OT: if such disclosures are inadequate, to

modify our opinion. Our conelusions ale hased on the audit evi Tc«:i:m‘e:-»ob@g;.;;;g:;ct up to the date.ofour
Juditor’s report to ceage to poniinue
(48 P 2 ¥

However, future gvents Of sonditinns may ¢ause the Company 0 €256, 0
as a going concert. ' » R
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s Evaluate the overall pmsenmrfion,, structure and content of the fipancial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statenents represent the underlying transactions and events ina

mannér that achieves falr presentation,

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant:
ethical requirements regarding independencs, and to communicate with them all velationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on oy i1f|de-pendencc, anc where a;npiioable, related

safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determing those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and ate therefore

the key audit matters. We describe these matlers in our auditor’s report.unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or W

hien, in extremely rare circuuistances, we determine that

a4 matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
such communication.

reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of

Report on the Supplementary Tnformation Required U ader Revenue Regula tions 15-2010

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on {he basic financial statements taken
as 2 whole, The supplementary ‘formation required under Revenus Regulations 15-2010 in Note 17 to
he financial statements 15 presented for purposes of filing with the Bureau of Internal Revenue and is 0oL
a required part of the basie financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of the
management of CMA-Holdings, Inc. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in our audit of the basic financial statements. In our opinion, the information i fairly stated, in all
material respects, i relation torthe basic finaticial statements taken as a whole.

The engagement partner o0l the ' report {s Ms. Mariectis ™.

audit resulting in this independent auditor
Barbaso. .

SYCIF GORRES VELAYO & CO.

J%xM&M Qt/{ B gpadiare

Marieeris N, RBarbaszo

Partnst

CPA Certificate No. 97104

SEC Acereditation NO. 1513-A (Group. A),
October 6, 2015, valid until October 5,2018

Tax Identification No. 202-065-716

BIR Accreditation No. 08»0019984{08»20 15,
March 4, 2015, valid until March 3, 2018

PTR No. 5908670, Yanuary 3, 2017, Maleati City

March 27, 2017
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STATE MELN'I s OF i*INANCI AL POBITE TON

_ - . . ﬁii?i?f*‘“ T
ASBSETS
Current Assets .
Cash and cash equivalents (Motes 6, 13 and L4y ¥26,8688,153 P6,846,541
Accounts raceivable (Notes 13 and 14) 455,810 199,515
Other current asseis B o 441, 598 366,999
Total Current Assets : 27, 8“‘“ ,33( i- 27,413,055
MNoneuarrent Asset
Avmldbla'ioz -sale investment (Notes 7, 15 an 7,13 and 14 20,825, 264 20,805,523
‘ @4‘1 ’71(} ‘Mg B4 8?218,5 8
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current iabilities .
Accounts paywb e and other current liabilities
(Notes 8, 13 and 14) . P403,212 B3 66,_179
Due to. 3harr=holders (Notes 12, 13 and 14) 47,271,600 47,271,600
Income tax payable o . -_ﬂ.?,fl_l(l,wﬂ_.wmw}ﬁﬁ,
‘Total Liabilities , o 47,678,538 47,638,048
Lquxﬁ - '
Capital stock {(Note 9) .1{}{)94)00 109,000
Retained eamings (Note 9) 1,107,223 675,007
Unrealized loss on & available-for- :ﬂle mves tment (N ote N (174,730) (1944 7).
Total Equm ______ . . 1 % 580 @_‘if)ﬁ
‘ : P48, ”7}0.«; P48218, 718,578
’E;g aeeompanying Notes to Financial Statements. T T



GMA HQLD[]N(J JNC. e }
& KAi‘LMLN TS OF C OM?REIW NSIVE INCOME

‘ Years Euded December 31 .
w‘_ | - 2016 2015 2014
REVENUE o L ‘
Interest income. (Notes Gand 7} . R1,996,094 BY,052,857 81,242,815
Exercise fees (Note 5) . 508,248 89,103 409,143
} 3.505,042 2 141,960 1,651,958
OPERATING EXPENSES (Note 10) 1 063,320 1,094,413 1,045,026
INCOME BEFORE INCOMI TAX 1,441,722 1,047,547 606,932
E}&OVKSE%)N FOR}NCOME TAX (Note 11) A9 109,506 412,354 25 6,74'6“ :
NET INCOME 1,032,216 635,193 450,186
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LU‘S‘%)
Jiem to be reclassified to pmft or loss in
subsequent per iods -
Unrealized gain (Ioss) on available-for-sale .
investment fNotm 7) 19741 (725,928) 531,451

s prosLgsr (90739 RO 637

TOTAL CGM?REHENSWE INCOME (LOSS). _pdd)
Basic/Diluted Barpings Per Share (Note 15) #103.22 p63.52 - P35.072

Coe geconponying Notes fo Financial Statements,




9%&1@@@@&%»‘-”,_,_,_,,ﬂ._m_4;,_.@_____.,4_...__-...; | i
STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY | .

Unrealized
. ‘Gafn (Loss) o
Retained Available-for-Sale
Capital Farnings Investment
i o swdNowd) (D (o7 Towal
Balances as at Januaty I, 2016 S 1 XU S v — (proa Ay #580,530
Net income ) - 1,032,216 - 1,032,216
Other comprehensiye InComd _ - S | 1. S . )
Fotal comprehensive ineome . - 1,032,216 19,741 1,051,987
Cash dividends (Note 9 . _{600,000), . J— (600,000)
Balances as at December 31, 2016 $100,009 21,107,223 (2174,726) 71,022,487
Balances as at January 1, 2015 - __BI00000 P539,814 o #531,45] $},171,265
Net incoms . . - 635,193 - 635,193
Other comprehonsive 1058 4_H._ﬁ.-_",‘___,;um..__..W____ﬂA,_,M,,;w.,_.w_,__(’LZé,»9%&2_“____,_&‘22#5%92&
Total comprehensive income-{10ss) - 635,193 (723,92 (90,735)
St dividonds Noie9) ____— 5757555 D A S—
Diolances as at December 31, 2013 £100,900 R675,007 (2194.477) £580,530
Balances as at January L2004 £100,000 £189,628 ____W‘___#_____‘____}*: 269,628
Net income Co - 150,186
Other comprehensive Licome , e W?i}gﬂélw*ﬁlhi‘ii_
Total comprehensive ingone . - SILASL . 881,637
s e o ; ; 1 LY
Balances s at December 31,2014 - 100,00 1,451 - ?[lﬂ-—fﬁ«?y .
...... e ———————T T

e et T O G
See accompanying Notes fo Financial Statements.




GMiA HOLDINGS, we,
GTATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS ' ’ T

Years Ended December 31

- R ) S T
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES
Income before income tax w1,441,7272 R1,047,547 P606,932
Adjustment for interest ineome . ' ' .
A.MQNMEMMW-_W_M;_M_.,_..,.,—,.-...,.WL&-‘:‘iﬁ;ﬁ?ﬁl..ﬂ..,,.,..w_@sf?é?a&?_ﬁw (1,242,815)
Operating loss before wor ing capital changes (554,972) (1,005,31 3 _#(63'5;3537 )d
Decrease (increase) in: '
. Accounts receivable o (389,230) 15,550 40,650
Other current assets v ‘ 7 4,599} (64,126) (96,512)
 Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and
___other current labilities e AL — 124,380 80 W__gisﬁj_(’i)
Cash flows used in operations ‘ (981,768) (929,300} - (1,180,109)
Interest received _ 2,029,629 S 2021179 1,172,087
Income taxes paid _ o (406,249) (410,958) (256,745)
Net cash provided by (used in) operating -
actjvities ‘ ' 641,612 680,915 (264,767)
CASH FLOW FROM AN INVESTING
ACTIVITY -
Purchase of available-for-sale investment (Note 7 - —~ (21,000,000}
CASH FLOW FROM A FINANCING
ACTIVITY
pPayment of cash dividends (Nofe 9) ____w__ww((l(}ﬂﬁﬁ{?z (499,593) T
NET INCREASE (i}ECREASE) I CASH . ‘ :
AND CASH BQUIV ALENTS 41,612 181,320 (21,2647 67)
CASH AND CASH EQUIV ALENTS :
O AT BEGINNING OF YEAR peasesdL 26665221 41929588

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALER TS :
po6.846,541  FA6663221

AT END OF YEAR (Note 6)

e

W.MMB-_W,—WM?.—qwr -
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I
Basis of Preparati

e
Carporate Tuforination

GMA Holdings, Ine. (the Company) is incorporated in the Philippines 1o invest in, purchase or
otherwise acguire and own, hold, use, sell, assign, transfer, mortgage, pledge, exchange of
otherwise dispose real and personal property of every kind and description: The yegistered office
address of the Company is 51 Tower One, OUne wickinley Place, New Global Bonifacio City, Fort
Bonifacio, Taguig City. The Company was registered with the Securities and Exchange

Commission (SEC) on February 15, 2006, |

ctions of the Company are undertaken by

The accounting and administrative fun GMA Networl,
Inc. (GMA), a company under common control.

In 2007, the Company issued Philippine Deposit Receipts _(PDR&L which were listed and traded i
The Philippine Stock Exchange; e, (PSE) (see Note 5).

The Company will not engage i any business or purpose other than in connection with the’
jssuance of the PDRs, the performence of the obligations under the PDRs and the ¢ cquisition and
holding of the underlying shares of GMA in respect of the PDRs issued. T his includes .
maintaining the Company’s listing with the PSE and maiptaining ite status as 2 Phifippine person
for as long as the Philippine law prohibits ownership of GMA’S shares by non-Philippive person.
No reportable segment information is presenied as the Company s Limited operations are
adequately presented in the statements of com prehensive income.

ying financial statements of the Company Were appro ved and authorized for
(BOD) on March 27, 2017.

The accompan
tion of the Board of Directors

issuance in accofdance with a reselu

e e S ,_‘ [ —_— ’
on, Statement of Compliance and Changes i Accounting Policies and

Piaclosures

s of the Company have been prepared on & historical cost basis, except for
ured at fair value. The financial statements are

yregentation eurrensy. All

Basis of Proparation

The financial statement
available-for-sale (AFS5) investment, which is meas
presented ip Philippine peso, which is the Company’s functional and |

values are rounded 10 the nearest peso.
Statement of Complianee o '
The Company’s financial state e with Philippine Fin ancial
Reporting Grandards (PFRS).

ments have been prepared in accordane

Change @&i&é\wﬁmﬁgﬁ@ﬁ;@ﬂmﬁmm Q . . |
The accounting policies adopted are consistent with t.i.msy_evqﬁ the previous fipancial year, except:
that the Company has adopted the following new accounting pr.onmsnceynez}ts starting

January 1, 2016 Adoption of these profouncements did not have any sl gnificant impact ofl the

jal position of performance unless ,othél:.vw"iée'.iu:,c;hcated. .

1

Investmiént Enfi :

. l
i

Company’s finane

Al §§3 f the

. Amendments to PFRS 10, pFRS 12 and PAS 28

Consolidation Exception



n  Amendments t0 PERS 11, dccounting for Acquistions of Interests 0 Joint Qperations

»  PFRS 14, Regulalory Deferral Accownts,

«  Amendments to PAS L, Disclosure Initiative _ '

s Amendments to PAS 16 and PAS 38, Clarification of(s(c:capmble Methods of Depreciation
and Amortizalion '

o Amendments toF
s Amendments to PAS 27, Bquity Method in Separdie
s Annual lmprovements 0 PFRSs 2012 - 2014 Cyele

»  Amendment 10 PERS 5, Changes in Me thods of Disposal

»  Amendment to PFRS 7, Servicing Contracts ' '

s+ Amendment to PFRS 7, Applicability of the Amendments 10 PERS 7 to Condensed Interim

Financial Stotements ' . '
s Amendmentto PAS 19, Discouni Rare. Regziona[ Marker Issue -
«  Amendment to PAS 34, Disclosure of Information Eisewhere in the Interin Financial

Report’

AS 16 and PAS 41, Agric wlture: Bearer Plants
Financial Statements

Future. Changes - in Accounting k olicies
. Prououncements issued but not yet effective are listed below. Unless otherwise indicated, the
Coimpany do eaid pmﬂmmcc-men.ts to have a significant

es not expect that the future adoption of the
impact on its financial statements. The Company intends to adopt the following propouncements
when these become effective. '

Effective be ginning on or after Janudary 1, 2017

. Amendment to PFRS 12, Clarificaiion of the Scope of the Standard (Part of Annucl
Improvements 1o PFRSs 2014 <2016 Cyule)
Hows, Disclosuie Initiative

a  Amendments t0 PAS 7, Statement of Cash I

The amendments to PAS 7 require an entity to provide disclosures that enable users of

financial staterents 10 evaluate changes in {iabilities arising from financing activities,
including both chenges arising from cash flows and non-cash changes (such as foreign
exchange gains Of fosses). Un initial application of the amendments, entities are not required
to provide comparatve information for preceding periods. Barly application ofthe
amendments i permitted.

he 2017 financial

Application of amendments will result in additional disclosures int
statements of the Company’
s  Amendments o PAS 12, Income Taxes, Recognition ¢ f Deferred Tax Assels for nrealized
Losses :
The amendments clarify that an entity needs to consider whether tax law resiricts the 5QUICes
of taxable profits against which it may make deductions on ihe reversal of that deductible
temporary,differenee. Furthermore, the amendments provide guidance on how an entity
should deterniing future taxable profits and explain the circumstances 1 which taxable profit
may include the recovery of s0me assets for more than their carrying amount.
Fintities are required 1 apply the amendinents :fetmspwl;‘ijfeiy, Z_[—Iowwe.i', on a'unml a;pphcatlc.rn
of the amendienis, the change in 1he opening equity of the earliest com parative period may
pe recognized in opening retained earnings {or in another coim ;’101:14:?-111’. of f:‘-{i}l].fy, as
-ap.propz'ia.te), without alfoeating the change between opening retained earnings and other
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-components of equity. Bntities applying this relief must disclose that fact. Batly application

of the amendments is permitted.

Effective beginning on or after Jonuary 1, 2018 -
5 Amenclments to PFRS 2, Share-based Payment, Classification and Measurement of Share-
based Payment Transactions :

o Amendments to PFRS 4, Insurance Contracts, Applying PFRS 9, Financial Tnstruments, with

PFRS 4

« PFRS 15, Revenue Sfrom Contracts with Customers

-step made] that will apply to revenue arising from contracts
sod at an amount that reflects the
hange for ransferring goods or
structured approach to

PFRS 15 establishes a new five

with customers, Under PFRE 15, revenue is recogni
consideration to which an entify expects to be entitled in €X¢
services to a customer. The prineiples in PFRS 15 provide a mote
measuring and reco gnizing revenue.

The new revenue standard is applicable to all entities and Wiﬂ supersede all current revenue
recognition yequiréments under PFRS. Either a aill or modified retrospective application is
required for annual perfods beginning on or after January 1, 2018. :

The Company i8 currently assessing the impact of adopting this standard.

s PFRS 9, Financial Instruments

PERS 9 reflects all phages of the financial instruments project and replaces PAS 19, Finoncial
Insiruments. Recognition and Meesurement, and all previous versions of PFRS 9. The
standard introduces new requirements for classification an d measurement, impairment and
hedge accounting. PFRSY is effective for annual periods-baginning on or after
Japuary 1, 201 g, with early application permitted. Retrospective application is required, but
providing comparative information is not compulsory. For hedge accounting, the
requirements are generally applied prospectively, with some Himited gxcaptions.

The adoption of PFRS 9 will have an effect on the classification and measurement of the
Company’s financial assets and impairment methodology for financial assets, but will have no
jmpact on the classification-and rpeasurement of the Company’s i nancial liabilities. The
Company 18 cutrently assessing the impact of adopting this standard.

15 to PAS 28, Measuring an Associate o7 Joint Venture af Fair Value (Part of

s Amendmen
014 - 2016 Cycle)

Annual Improvenents to PFRSs
s Amendments to PAS 40, Invesiment Property, Transfers of Investnient Property
« Philippine Tnterpretation IFRIC-22, Foreign Chprency Transactions and Advance

Considerotion



Effective Dbeginning on or after January 1, 2019
s PFRS 16, Leases

Defarred effectivity

s  Amendments to PERS 10 and PAS 28, Sale or Contribution of Asseis benween ai 1mvesior ond

its Associate oF Jnint Venture

e ine

e

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies -

The Contpany presents assels and liabilities in s
current/nonouryent classification.

Current versus N oneurrent Classification :
tatement 0f financial position based on

‘

An asset as current when it is:

»  Dxpected to be realized or intended to be sold or copsumed in normal operating oycle;

s Held primarily for the purpose of trading,

«  Expected to be realized within twelve months afte

»  Cagsh and cash equivalent unless restricted from being
for at least twelve. imonths after the reporting period.

¢ the reporting pariod; of
exchanged or used (0 settle a liability

A liability is current when!

«  [tig expected to be seftled in normal operating cyele;

s Jtis held primarily for the purpose of trading; .

s tis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; of

»  There (8 N0 uncenditional right to defer the settlement of the liabjlity for at least twelve
months after the reporting period. '

The Company classifies all-other assets and liabilities as noncurrent.

Fair value is the price that would be received 10 sell an asset or paid t© transfer a liability in ap

orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date, The fair value

measurement is bas ect on the presumption that the transaction 10 sel] the asset or transfer the

[iability takes place gither:

Fair Value Measurement

P42t o

o in the principal market for the assel o1 liability; or - :
¢« in the absence of 2 principal matket, in the most advantageous market for the asset or Elgtbﬁﬂ‘y,

The prineipal or the most advantageous market must be accessible to the Company.
The fair value of a0 asset or a liability is measured using the agsumptions that market participants
would use whea pricing the asset or lability, assuming that market participants.act il their best

econoniic interest.
A fair value meastretnent of & woifi nancial assel tafies info account market participant’s ahility

N o : i IR T M A oot gse of et 14
to generate economic benefits by Usile the asset in 16 highest and best use or Y 5 Hling ttto
Zarticipant that would use the asset in 8 highest and bast use.

another market |



S5

The Company uses yaluation technigues that are ap propriate in the circumstances an d for which
sufficient data are available to nisasile fair value, maximizing the use © ¢ relavant observable

inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inpuls.

Assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured of disclosed in the Comparny’s financial

statements are_c&tegorized within the fair value Lierarchy, described as follows, based on the.

Jowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement 88 a whole! :

Quoted (un‘adj_usteci") market prices in active markets for identical assets of
liabilities; : 4

Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest tevel input that
value measurement is directly or indirectly observable; and

o Level 3 - Valuation technigues for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair

value measurement is unobservable. :

» Level I -
is significant to the fair

For.assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial stateents on 4 recuiting bagis, the
Company determines whether wausfers have occurred between tevels in the hierarchy by
[eassessing ¢ategorization (based on the lowest level input that is significantto the fair value

measurenient as 4 whole) at the end of each reporting date.

The Company determines the policies and procedures for poth recurring and pon-recurring fair
value measurements. At each reporting date, the management analyzes the movements in the
values of assets and fiabilities which are requited (o be remeastred of renssessed as per the
Company’s accounting policies. Tor this analysis, 4ie management verifics the major inputs
applied in the Jatest valuation by agreeing the information in the yaluation computation to
contracts and other celevant documents. ' '

any has determined classes of assels and

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Comp of
ks of the asset or liability and the level

liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and 118
of the fair value hierarchy.

Details as to how the fair value of assets and Habilities are measured are provided in Note 14,
Casl and Cash Douivalents

Cash includes cash on hand and 1n
investments that are readily sonvertible to knowp am oun
months or Tess from dates of placement and are subject to an

hanks. Cash equivalents arc short-term, highly Hiquid
ts of cash with origihal maturities of three

insignificant visk of change in value,

Financial Instrusents

A financial instrument is ity oontract that gives rige 104 fipancial asset of one pntity and &
or equity insteuments of another entity.

financial liability or 644 ity and @ financial Hability

Financial Assels

Initial Recognition and Measurement ‘ ‘ By ’
Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, 8s financial assets at fair velue through profit
or loss (FVPLY, joans and yeceivables, hekhto*mxm.riiy (HTM) ixwestnmztsﬁ uvmlatfie for sale

derivatives designated as hedging instruments o ail effective hedge,

& TECOED zed 13}['{]15},1}}’ i fair ¥ alue pius, I the case G

(AF5) financial assets, o 88
priate. All finangial agsets are it

as appro L8 ¢
finanetal assels not resorded al FYPLL L

the financial assel . | \

pansaction costs that are attributable the acquisition of
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purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established
! . e . . .

by regulation or convention in the market place (regular Way trades) are recognized on the trade
date, 1., the date that the Company somoits 10 purchase o sel] the asset. '

Subsequent Meastrement '
For purposes of subsequent measurernent, financial assets are classified in four categories:
»  Tinancial assets at FY PL '

¢+ Loans and receivables

o HTM investments ' ‘ '
o AFS financial assots

The Company has no financial assets at FVEL and HTM investments.

Loans ond Receivables. Loans and receivables ate non-derivative financial assets with fixed or

: ({etem'%mable payments that are not guoted in an active market, After initial measurement, such
financial assets are gubsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate (EIR)
method, less impairment. Amortized cost is paicul-lted by taking into account any discount of
premium ofl acquisition and fees or cOsts that are ap integral part of the BIR, The BIR
amortization and the losses arising from impairment are reco gnized in statement of comprebensive
income. : :

This category includes cash and cash equivalents and acoounts receivable.

AFS Investments. The Company’s AFS fipancial vsset pertains 10 debt securities. Debt securities
i1 this category are those that are intended 1o be eld for an indefinite period of time and that may
be sold in respense 1 needs for liquidity or in response o changes in the market conditiong. '
After initial measurement, AI'S financial assets ar¢ subsequently 1meas ured at fair value with
unrealized gains of 10858S recognized in OCI and credited to the AFS reserve until the investment
(s derecognized, at which time, the cumulative gain or 085 is recognized in other operating
‘ncome, or the investment is determined to be impaired, when the cumulative loss 1§ reclassified
from the AFS reserve 10 the statement of profit or loss in finance costs. Interest earned whilst
holding AFS financial assets is reported as inferest income using the EIR method.
art of a group of similar

Derecognition
ement of financial pos ition)

A financial asset (or, where app
financial assets) is primarily derecog

Jicable, a part of a finaneial asset or p
nized (i, removed from the stal

when:

«  The rights to receive cash flows fiom the asset have expired; or

s The Company has transferred its rights to reccive cash flows feom the asset or Nas asamed an
obligation to pay the received vash flows in full without material delay to 2 third party under 2

through’ arrangement; and either (a) the substantially all the

Company has traus ferred
() the Company has neither transferred nor retained
set, but

‘pass-
has tra nsferred control of the asget.

risks and rewards of the asset, of
substantially all the risks and rewards of the 8ss
1 an 'dSSfit ar has guter G(;
hat extent, it has retained the risks and
retained su hstantially all of the risks
continues Lo 1ecognize

When the Company has transferred its rights (0 receive cash flows 110
intc 4 pas&through arrangement, it evajuates if, and to W
rewards of ownership,. When it has neither transferred 007
and rewards of the assel, noT sransferred control of the assel, the Conp

the transferred asset 1O the extent of its coptinuing involyen ent, In thal case, the Company also
recognizes al associated liability. The sransforred assot and the associated }iabili.(y are measured
o & basts that reflocts the rights and obligations that the Company hag retained.




es the form of a guatantes OVer the trans (erred assel is measured

Continuing invelvement that tak
o asset and the maximum amount of

at the Jowerof the original carrying amount of th
.consideration that the Company could be required to repay.

Impairment of Financial Assets : _
The Compaly 2sse85e8; at each repotting date, whether there is objective evidence that a financial
asset or a group of financlal assets is jmpaired. An impaicment exisls if one or more events that
an impact on
up of fin ancial assets that can be

has occurred since the initial recognitiot of the asset (an ineurred ‘loss event’), has
the estinated future cash flows of the financial asset or the gro
reliably estimated, Bvidence of impairment may inelude indications that the debtors or a growp of
debiors is experiencing significant financial d ifficulty, defavit or delinquency in interest or
principal payments, the probability that they will enter bankeuptey or other financial o
reorganization and observable data indicating that there is @ mieasurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows, suchias changes in atrears OF economic conditions that correlate with defaults.
Financial Assels Carried at Amortized Cost. For fpancial agsets carried at amortized cost, the
Company first assesses whether impaiiment exists individually for financial asseta thet ate
individually significant, or collectively for financial assets that are not individually significant. It
the Company determines that no obj ective evidence of jmpairment sxists for an individually

. assessed fin ancial asset, whether sigpificant or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial
assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses them for impairment.
Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss s, o
continues to be, yecognized are not included in a collective assessment of impairment.

as the difference between the asset’s
sh flows (excluding future expecied
lue of the ::stima_.te-d future cash flows

The amount of any jmpairment loss identified 18 measured
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future ¢2
credit losses that have not yet been incurred). The present va
s discounted at the financial asset’s original EIR.
The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account and the loss
is recognized in the sk tement of cmn,p,reiwnsi\re income. Interest neoms continues o be acerued
on the reduced carrying amount using the rate of nterest used to dis coupt the future cash flows
for the purpose of measuring tho jmpairment 108s, Loans, together with the associated allowance
e written off when there Is 10 realistic prospect of future recovery and all collateral has been
realized or has been sransferred to the Company. If, in & subsequent year: the antount of the
estimated impairment 10sS incroases of decreases pecause of an event occurring after the
impairment was recopnized, the previously recognized jmpairment loss s increased ot reduced by
adjusting the allowanee account, 1f a write-off is later recovered, the recovery is credited to other
income in the statement of comprehensive fncome.

AFS Invesiments. FoI AFS financial assets, the Company assesses al gach reporting date whether
¢ ipvestments {a impaired,

there is ob)] eotive gvidenco {hat au inyestgent or & group 0%

In the case of debt instruments classified as AT'S, the impairment 18 assessed based on the same
criteria as financial assets carried at amortized cost. However, the 2 mount ££60 :"Eicfi for
impairment 18 the cumulative logs measured as the difference betwesl the amortrlz:ed c:.o_st auc_! the
current fair value, less any jmpairiment loss on that 1V estment prev jously recognized it profit or
0ss. -
Future foterest incOMe gontinues 1o be acerued based ol e reduced carrying 4o unt of f;hﬁ agset,”
using the rate of interest used to discount the fuhure cash flows for the pl.frpuse of measuring the
im gja‘ir.u'mm losg, The interest is recorded as part of interest income. I£, in a subsequent year, the
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fair value of a debt ipstrument increases and the increase can be objectively related to an event
oocurring after the impairment loss was recognized i1 profit or 1088, the impairment loss is
reversed through profit or Joss.

Day 1 Difference’. Where the transaction price in a gon-active market is different from the fair
ther observable current market transactions in the same instrument oF based o1 a
valuation technique whose variables inelude only data from, observable market, the Company
recognizes the difference between the ransaction price and fair value (a ‘Day 1 difference’) in -
profit or loss unless it qualifies for regognition as some. other type of asset. 1n cases where
unobservable data is used, the difference between the fransaction price,and model value is
recognized in profit or foss only when the inputs become observable or when the instrument is
derecognized. For each trapsaction, the Company determines the zzppropriam.n:n—:thod of

recognizing the ‘Day 1 difference’ amount.

value based on o

Financial Liabilities
Imitial Recognition and Measurement
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial re¢
profit or loss, joans and borrowings, payables, o as derivatives
in an effective hedge, 85 appropriate.

ognition, as financial Hiabilities at fajr value through
designated as hedging instruments

All financial liabilities are recognized injually at Gair value and, in the ©ase of loans and
o transaction costs.

porrowings and payables, net of directly attributabl

This category includes aceounts payable and other current liabilities (excluding deferred output

VAT) and due to sharsholders.

Subsequent Measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends ot their clagsification, as described below:
owings. After initial recognition, inferest-bearing loans and borrowings are

st using the EIR method. Gains and 10ssos a1e recognized

derecognized as well as through the EIR amortization

Loans and bort
subsequently measured at amortized ca
in profit or loss when the liabilities are
PI'DCC‘?SS._

ost is caleulated by taking iuto account any discountor premiwm o1 acquisition and
are an integral part afthe BIR. The BIR amortization s included as interest

\t of gomprehensive income.

Amortized ¢
fees or costs that
expense in the statemel
Derecognition : :
A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the Hability is discharged or
cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
Jender o substantially different terms, or the orms of an existing liability are substantially
_modified, such an exchange of modification is ireated as the derecognition of the original Liability
and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts 15

recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

Offsettl ng of Financiall nstrumnents o
Financial assels and financial liabilitics are offset ond the net amount 13 rgported in the siatement
right to offset the recognized amonnis

of financial position if thete is 4 r;urwszati}"@1'5_5&3}.&;%.-:3}3{@ legal zed &
and there is an intention to settle oi & et basis, 01 10 realize the assels and settle the liabilities
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5 that it has & currently enforceable right of offset if the
ly enforceable in the normal course of
kruptey of the Company ane all of the

simultaneously. The Company assesse:
right is not contingent on a future event, and is legal
business, event of default, and event of insolvency or ban

counterparties.
Other Current Assets

Other current assets include input VAT and prepaid taxes w
credits from taxes withheld and. are deductible from the Compan ¥'s 1

hich represent prior year’s excess tax
neome tax payable,

Equity , :
Capiral Stock. Capital stock is measured at par value for all shares issued. Incremental costs
incurred divectly attributable to the issuance of new shares are shown in equity as & deduction fromt.
progesds, net of tax. ' C

pulated earnings, net of

Retained Earnings. Retained carnings represent the Company’s aceu

dividends declared.

Dividends. 'The Company recognizes a liability to make cash distribution to its equity holders
istribution is autherized and the distribution is 10 longer at the diseretion of the

As per the corporate laws in the Phifippines, 2 distribution is authorized when it is

10 BOD. A corresponding amouat is recognized directly in the equity. Dividends

roved after the financial rgporting date are dealt with as an event afler the

when the
Company.
approved by t
for the year that are app
reporting date.

Revenue ‘ -
ized to the extent that it is probable that fhe economic benefits will flow to the

Revenye is recogni

Company and the amount can be reliably easured, regardiess of when payiuent is made.
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or recefvable, taking into.
account contractually defined terms of paymient and excluding taxes or duty. The Company
assesses its revenue arrangem i ia in order to determine if it js acting as

ents against specific criter
principal or agent. The Company has concluded that it 18 acting as a principal i all its revenue
arrangements.

The following specific recognition criteria must also be met hefore revenue is recogrized:

Inierest come. Revenue 18 recognized a5 the interest accries, taling into account the effective
yield on the asset..
Exercise Fees, Revenue is rf;c-()gmzed L’Lp(ﬁl’j oonv&:r&ion of PIIRs to common shares .

Expenses -
Expenses presemed ag“Op ent of comprehensive fncome

are recognized as incurred.

erating expenses” account in the state

ities for the current period ar¢ measured

et and fiabil :
The tax rates and

Tazes

Crurrent Incoine Tax. Current income tax ass '
at the amount expeeted to be recovered from or paid t0 the tagation authortics.
tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted of substantially enacted at
reporting date. '

i yecognized 10 equity and not

Jy in equity
the tax. returng with res pect

ating to jtems reco gnized direst
ly evaluates positions taken i

Cyrrent ingome 8% rel
- in profit or loss. Management petiodica
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to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subjeoct Lo interpretation and establishes
provisions where appropriate: . '

Deferred Income Tax. Deferred ingome tax is provided using the lability method on all
temporary differences at reporting date vetween the tax bases of assets and Jabilities and their
catrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date. ‘
Deferred income tax agsets are recognized for all deductible temporaly differcnces, carryforward
penefits of exCess mininum Eorporate inoome tax (MCIT) overte gulag cotporate income tax
(RCIT) and net operating 1058 capryover (NOLCO), to the extent that it is probable that taxable
income will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carryforward

benefits of excess MCIT over RCIT and NOLCO can be utitized excepl:
»  When the deferred income tax asset yelating to the deductible temporary difference arises from
\at is not a business combination

gnition of an agset or Hability in 2 fransaction tf

the initial reco
ounting income nor tax able profit or

and, at the time of the transactiof, affects neither the ace
logs; and ‘ :

s o respect of deductible temuporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates and interest i joint arrangements, deferred income tax assets are recognized only 1.
the extent that it is probable that the temporary. differences will reverse in the foresesable
future and taxable income will be available 8 gainst which the temporary differences cau be

utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced
to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all
or part of the deferred income tax assets to be atilized. Unreco gnized deferred incoms tax 2ssels
are reassessed 8t each reporting date and are recogn ized to the extent that it has become probable
that future taxable profit will allow the deferred income fax assets to be recovered.

Deferred income tax {iabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences, except:

the ibitial recogﬁition'of goodwill or an
o5 combination and, at the time of the
ble profit or 10s8; and

¢ When the deferred igome tax liability arises from.
assel or Hability in & srancaption that is not a busine
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxd

orary differences associa:tec.l,with investments in subsidiaries,

e timing of the reversal of the temporary

il not reverse

s In respect of taxable temp
associates and interests in joint ventures, when th
differences can be controtled and itis probable that the temporary differences ¥

in the fores seable future,
liabilities are measured at the @ax rates applicable to {he year when
that have been to be

Deferred ineome tax assets.and
ed on tax rates and tax laws

the asset is realized or the liability is settled, bas
enacted ot gubstantively enacted at the reporting date.
Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset ifa legally enforceable right exists to offset
current tax assels against cusvent tax Habilities and the deferred income Taxes relate to the same
taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

[ncome tax sefating 1o T is recogiized iy OF] sesticd of the statemerits of comprehensive

necome.
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VAT, Revenue, expenses and assets are recognized net of the amount of VAT The net amount of
VAT recoverable from, of payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of “Other current
assets™ or “Accounts payable and other current labilities” accounts in the statement f financial

position.
Earnings Per Share (EPS) - '
16 for the year by the weighted average

Basic EPS amounts are caleulated by dividing net neon
number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year.
comumon shares outstanding, therefore, basic EPS 15.the

The Company has no dilutive potential
same as dilutéd BPa.

Provisions

Provisions are recogn obligation (legal or congtructive) where,

ized when the Compainy hag a preseill

as 4 result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of sssets crobodying economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation and 3 reliable estimalte cal be made of the amount of the
obligation, 1f the offect of the time value of money s material, provisions are determined by
discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessmeits
of the time value of money and, where appropriate, ihe risks specific to the {iability, Where '
discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as interest
expense. W here the Compatty expocts a provision to be reimbursed, the 1j&i1"1:1bu.rsement is
recoglized as a sEparake assot but only when the receipt of the reimbursement is virtually certain.

Contingencios _
Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the financial statements- These are disclosed in the

notes to financial staternents unless the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying
ecoomic benefits is remote. Contingent assets are 10t reco gnized in the financial statements but
are disclosed in the notes to- financial statements when an inflow of economic henefits is probable.

Events after the Reporting Date '
Post year-end events that provide additional information about the Compaiy’s position at the
reporting date (adjusting events) are reflected i the financial statements. Post year-end gvents

that ars-not adjusting events are disclosed inth hen material.

18 notes 10 fnancial statements W

e T AT T

Ty S :
ant Accounting Judgments, Retimates aud Asswmplions

Summary of Signific

with PFRS requires the Company to
affect the reportc}d amounts of assets, liabilities, income and
nd Habilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions
| adjustment to the carrying amount o f

The preparation of the financial statements in complianee

make estimates and agsumptions that
expenses and disclosure of contingent assets &
and estimates could result in outcomes that require 2 matetia
assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

Pstimates are continuelly evaluated and are based ob historical experience and othey factors,
including expectations of future events that aro betieved to be determinable under the

pircumstances.

The key estimates and assumptions concerning the fture and other key gourees of estimation
uncertainty at reporting date, that have & significant risk of cauging 8 matm’ia}. adjustment {0 {h;e
carrying amounts of agsets and liabilities within the mxfﬂna.nci.a? yoar, are disoussed b(::'-iow, The
Company besed it assumptions and e8 Himates on paranielers available when the financial
s:m‘teihes;ts were pr:;% ared. Existing SUCHNSLANCeS and gysumptions about future cieve,l{.)pme\niﬁ
however, may change due 10 market ehanges of aireumstances arising beyond the control of the
Cotnpany. Such changes aIe reflected in the assumptions when these ooeut.
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Determining Fair Value of AFS Investment. The Company fas no intention of selling its AFS,
investment in the near term. It is being held indefinitely and may be sold in response to liquidity

pequirements oF changes i market gondition.

The Compaly catries AFS investment at fair value. Since AFS {pvestment cannot be derived
from active markets, the fair value is determined using appropriate valuation technique, which 18
discounted cash flow imethodology. The inputs 1 the model are taken from observable markets
where possible, but where this is not foasible, a degree of judgment is required in establishing fair
value. ‘ v .

The fair value of AFS mvestment i8 discussed in Note 14.

Impatrment of AFS Inves pnent. The Company follows the guidance © fPAB3910 determine swhen
“an AFS inyestment is impaired. J udgment by management is pequired in the estimation of the
amount and timing of future cash flows whan determining if allowance is required. Such
astimates are. based on assumptions about & pumbes of tactors and actual results may differ.
Allowance may be pased on any deteriors 1e investment since it was

tion in the internakrating of t
acquired. These internal ratings take {ato consideration factors such as any deterioration in risk,
industry, and the financial health and near-term business outlook of the tscuer, as well as identified
structural weaknesses or detesioration it oash flows. ' '

There was 10 provision for impairnient logs in 2016-and 5015. The carrying vajue of AFS
invastment‘nn'kounted 10 £20.83 million and #20.81 million as at December 31,20 16 and 2015,
respectively (sce Note 7). : :
Estimating Realizability of Deferred Income Tax Assets. The Company’s assessinent on the
recognition of deferred incotme tax assets ol nondeductible temporary c‘}i'fferegce?a and \
ca.rryforward.'beneﬁts of NOLCO and €xcess MCIT is based upon the likely tning and level of
forecasted taxable income in the subsequent periods. This forecast i baged on ihe Company’s
future expectations on revenue and expenses, '

The Company did 1ot f@cognizc\defcrwd income tax assets amounting 10 20,73 million and
£0.96 million as at December 31 2016 and 2013, respeati‘ve}y as management believes that
sufficient taxable profit will not be available against which the deductible teporary differences

can be utilized (se@ Note 1 1.)'

,,,,, S— P g .._H.........Mn.._,..,_.....‘,__.«-._.»,._w-ﬁ-g—'

Philippine Deposit Feceipls
On July 30, 2007 and August 21, 2007, the Corpany {ssued 8221 15,000 and ! 23,31 i?,(i{)(} PORs
pelating to GMa shares, respectively. Total number of iasued PDRs 18 9%5,45;’,,000 fora
consideration of R8.50 per share O %,036,172,000.

Bach PDR grants the holders, upon payment of the exereise price and S'tzpject to certain other
conditions, the delivery of one GMA share of the sale of and delivery of the proceeds of such sale”
of one GMA shaie. The Company remains to be the registered OWnEr 9:[' the GMA shares covered
by the PDRs. The Compaity also retains the yoting rights oVer the GMA. shares.

The GMA shares are gtill subject to ownership pesteict f corpoigt}qns fmgagg?ci mT

2 and GMA may reiect the wanster of shares 10 P& f !}111.1;:{;)1,51@ ua('toua;s.
are listed in the PSE o8 July 30, 2007, and the samne May b exel @1?;@&. at any time
Any cash dividends of other cash distributions in respect of GMA shares rc—;cewedl

iong on shares 0
mass medi raons gther than
The PDRs were
from said date,
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by the Company shall be applied towar d the operating expenses of the Company for the current
and preceding yoars. A further amount equal to the operatiig expenses in the preceding year shall
be set aside to meet operating ot other expenses Tor the succeeding years: Any amount in escess,
of the aggregaie of the vperating expenses paid and the operating Fund for such period shall be
distributed to PDR holders pro-tata on the first business day after such cash dividends are received

by the Company.

Upon exercige of the PDRs, an exeroise price of RB(0.05 (VAT inclusive) per share shall be paid by
the PDR holders. The exercise price is shown as wpyercise fees” account in the statement of
comprehensive income, Bxercisefoes amounted to BO.51 million, 20.09 wmillion and PO.41 million
in 2016, 2015 and 2014, respectively. ‘

Immediately prior o the closing of the PR offering and additional iszuences described above,
GMA, to which the Company is affiliated, transterred 945,432,000 GMA shares to.the Company
in relation to which the PDEs were issued. Foras long as the PDYRs are not exercised, the shares
underlying the pDRs will continue to be registered in the name of, and ovwned by the Company.
and all rights pertaining to these shares, including voting rights, shall be exercised by the
Company. The obligations of the Company to deliver the GMA shares of exercise of the right
contained in the PDRs are secured bY ihe Pledge of Shares in favor of the Pledge Trustee acting on
pehalf of each holder of a PDR over the GMA shares. ’

PDR offeiing, 2 shareholder may, at his option and from time to time, deliver
1 pumber of PDRs. The exchange is based on

on with the corresponding PDR

At any time after the
shares to the Company in exchange for an oqud
prevailing traded valug of GMA shares at the time of fransacti

option price.

As discussed above, the Company retains the rights to receive the cash flows from its investment
in GMA and assumes 2 contractual obligation to pay those cash flows 10 the PDR holders, net of
operating expenses (2 “pa.:ss—'ti‘u‘{;)ilgh” arrangement). The “pass-throy gh” test is met because the
Company (&) has no obligation 0 the PDR holders anless it collects equivalent am ounts from its
investment in GMA, (b) is cont actually prohibited from selling or pledgiog its investmeint in
GMA other than as security to the PR holders for the obligation to pey the cash flows, and

(¢) has an obligation to remit any cash flows from the investment in GMA to the PDR. holders

without material delay.

Under the “pass-throu gh” test, the Company is deemed to have transferred substantially the risks
and rewards of its investment in GMA. Accordingly, the investment in GMA and the fabilities
related to the issuanece of the PDfs are not recognized by the Company.

The following 2r¢ the details and movements of the PDRg and the U nderlying CiMA shares for the .
-years ended Decerber 31
Number of Shares ..

PDRS e .
' 20 2016 2015 _

.“--,._,._..._W.g_{ll@,_,_m;__,w,w 035 e e T GO0 o
iﬁﬁ&&%?&Tﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁﬁg?&@%K?“”“’"“%7J93§57@5@ 57210,032,500 446,349,100 Bi§,345,000
Fxercise of PDRS : (96,789,500)_ (16.965,150) (11 387.000) (1.995,900).
Baﬁmaeatendofy&%ﬂmﬂw~W— ~§7.097,177,850 57.193,067,350 834&62A0§ﬂméﬂﬁdéﬁ4&}0qw

5 cash distribution o PDR holders of RO.25 per share,
75 million to al] charehnlders of record

19,2015,

On March 30, 2015, the Company approved
) ’ ‘ L PR - Ty
n fo dividends declared by GMA, rotaling to P21

in relatio i , _
4,2015. These were remitted 10 PR holders on ey

as at April 2



5.

et

7.

record as at April 25, 2016.

,14.]

a cash distribution to PDR holders of B0.40 per
lared by GMA to all shareholders of '
holders on May 17, 2016.

On April 8, 2016, the Company’s BOD approved
share {otaling to B33 g .54 million, in relation to dividends dec
These were remitted © the PR,

a resolution to pass on the entire amount of the cash dividends received from
and.2015 projected operating expenses on
{ hy the interest

The BOD approved
GMa without deducting the Company’s 2016
March 27, 2016 and April 17,2015, respectively. Such expenses shall be coversd
income from the Compa ny’s'cash and cash equivalents and AFS vestment.

As discussed in Note 1.6, on March 27,2017, the BOD approvac’i o cash distribution to PDR.
holders in relation 0 dividends declared by GIMLA.

e et e et o st

e o e it

Cash and Cask Equivalents
.,._M_.M._ﬂ_,_w_m__,_,_#,_W,,,,__,_,_.”,..__w#___m16 .

v Cash on band and in banks 1,540,888 2722,018
25,3&'2,_?;{'3 26,124,523

Short-term deposits . o R o A8y
' P26,888,135 £26,846,541

& respeotive bank deposit rates. Short-term deposits are made for

Cash in banks eafo interest at th
on the immediate cash requirements of the

varying periods of up to three months depending
Company, and eamn interest at the respective short-terimn deposit rates.

Tnterest income earned from cash in banks and short-term deposits amounted to BO.87 pillion,

£0.92 million and B1,12 million in 2016, 2015 and 2014, 1'6‘.«8;;»eativai}-z

Sy
Available-fo r-Sale Tnvestment

In 2014, the Company purchasad at par & ten-year UBP Tier Note with a face value of
121,00 million bearing a fixed interest rate of 5.3 4%. The maturity date of this note s oo
February 20, 2025. '

Interest income earned froni the UBP Tier Note amounted o B1.12 mifljon, P1.13 miflion and

R0.12 million in 2016, 2015 and 2014, respestively..

The movement in AFS invatstm@m i« as follows!

: [ MMM__,_‘_“_%‘}_ 16 2015
Balance at beginning of year ‘ $20,805,523 P21 ;759,-21?
%ﬂ&ﬂ&i@mﬂﬁﬂ-ﬂwwm__,WWWW_,_A%_,_&%,_,*___A_&M
Balance at end of yeal” 220,828,764 220,805,523
Movement of net unrealized loss on ATS investment is as follows:
016 20
B "‘”?""’"""""‘"““"“""‘“‘""‘”""““""""""’”""*""'“'”""’T""f‘”‘ ey 257
Balance at begoning of year 2194477 7531451
Gain (Ioss) due 1o chnges in feir yalue of AFD N . o
investment I 19741 G (725.928)
L e AL STEA AT
Ralance at end of year (2174,730) (#194,477)

- St TR
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8. Accounts Payable and Other Currvent Linbilities o

WWMMNM_WM,M_W,_JQHL#M%%QLL
- Aocounts payable ‘ ' 9,043 © P8,881
Accrued expenses _ _ '
Professional and trust fees , - 342,857 150,000
Others : ' 3902 2,261
- Peferred outpul VAT | s S 44,321 2,618
Dividends payable S 2,689 2,419
‘ O T $403,212 TP366,179

erest-bearing and are normally settled within

Accounts payable and acorued expenses are nonint
qudit fees, retainet fees and miscellancous

the next financial ysar. Accrued expenses represent
expenses. o

w“———_—‘———_‘.‘—_.‘——“_'_‘“"_“’_v‘-‘ et e b A ‘—_‘P—-W_Mnhh_—“-ﬂ——dw”’——du—-—“_

e
9, Equity

a. Capital Stock

The Company has 10,000 authorizad, jssued and outstanding common shares with 10,00 par

value per share.

The following aummarizes the mformation on the Compaiy’s m_gistra‘tion.of cecurities with

the SEC as required by Securities Regulation Code Rule 68, As Amended (2011):
Authorized Number :
‘ Number of fssued Issue/
Date of SEC Approvel ___of Shares __ Shares Offer Price
945,432,000 045,432,000 _ £8.50

Tuly 30,2007

b, Retained Earnings
s declaration and distribution of cash

On March 30, 2015, the BOD approved the Company’
s of record as at December 31,2014,

dividends amounting to £0.50 million to all stockholder

'q declaration and distribution

ompany’s BOD ap proved the Company
cord as at April 25, 2016

On April 8, 2016, the C
1o P60 million to all shareholders of re

of cash dividends amounting
and were paid ot May 17, 2016,
proved the Company’s declaration and distribution of cash

On Match 27, 2017, the BOL ap .
Kholders of record as at April 20,2017

dividends amounting 0 #1.00 million to all stoc
{see Note 16).



- 16~

10. Operating Hxpenses | B o
e 016 o015 2014
Listing fees 2614,0064 £576,046 690,295
Professional fees 382,857 475,291 280,085
Taxes and licenses 31,509 20,382 42,788
Others e [ . LN L 22,694 31,858

' 71,063,320 £1,094,413 B1,045,026

11, Income Taxes M_-MM_M—“M_W"“WWW—#—_
' Current Income. Tax ‘
The somponents of the Company’s provision for current inpome tax are as follows:

MMMMMW_QM‘;_#_M%;W;JQ&_

Tinal tax interest P399,33 410,572 ROAR,563
MCIT ' e 10,167 L2 8,183
P409,506 p412,354 P256,740

- =t s
The reconc’tliati‘on‘oi the provision for income tax computed at statutory incoime tax rate and the

provision for incoms tax as shown in the statements of comprehetsive income js sumumarized 8s
follows:
ey 015201
Troome tax computed at SEELOry }
income tax 1ate 24372,517 314,204 7182,080
Income tax effect of: .
~ Interest income subjected 1o _
final tax - {199,669) (205,285) (124,282}
Movement i untecoguized -
, deferred income tax assets (246,597) 36,306 (181,061)
Bxpired NOLCO and MCIT 403,255 267,060 380,009
149,506 $412,354 TP256,746
Deferred Tax Assels :
The components of unrecognized deferred tax assets are s follows:

- , 2016 2015
MMMMWFMM,MWMMW
NOLCO - T E658,849 595,613
Uprealized loss on AFS investment , 52,421 58,343
MOIT — e 9,962

: ' #731,402 P963,921
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{ as deduetion from’ future

As at December 3 1, 2016, NOLCO and MCIT that can be claimed
taxable income and RCIT due, respectively, are as follows:

Date Paid/Incurred Carryforward BenefitUpTo  NOLCO_ L MeIT
December 31,2014 Decerber 31, 2017 ' T R635,383 6,183 .
December 31, 2015 December 31, 2018 1,005,310 1,782
Degember 31, 2016  December 31,2019 554972 10,167
$2,196,165 £20,132
The movements in NOLCO and MCIT follow:

- NOLCO: B
Balance at beginning of vear 22,985,377 $2.855,461
Additions , 554,972 1,005,31 0
Expired NOLCO___ _ . (1,344,184 875,394)
Balance at end of year #2,196,165 592.,985,37_7 )

MCIT: ' , ‘
Balance at beginning of year , 29,965 P12,634
Additions : 10,167 1,782
Expired MCEL I ) = Mﬂ_\_ﬁ_’_gﬁé_l)_
Balance at end of vear ' 220,132 £9,965

In 2015, deferred income 1o asset amounting (o £0.23 million was partially reco gized to offset
against deferred income WX liability of the saine amount arising ot unrealized gain on AFS

investment,

rwﬂw-wﬂ—wd—ﬂw.wﬁ_

e T
12. Related Party Digclosures
fas the ability, directly and indirectly, to control
or the other party in making finaneial and

be related if they are subject to common

Parties ar¢ considered to be related if one party
the other parfty or exercige significant influence oV
operating decizions, Parties are also considered to
control. : ' :

Terms and C_;Qllfiﬁ'i_gﬁﬁﬂfli.&ﬂﬁm@ﬂﬁtiQﬂllﬁ,l?\’,iﬂl_fﬁiﬂ,_l@l@_&‘_?.@@ﬁ '

Transactions with related parties nave been enjered nto at torms no less favarable than could bave
peen obtained if the transactions were entered mio with uprelated parties. The Company’s
financial statements include the following amounts resulting from the transactions with related

parties as at December 31

Amount/Yolume Outsiaﬁding
09" ( - ' P . SO *'.. 15§36 5
Category oo e of Transactions o —n ayable  Terms . . Copditions
Shareholders ) ) ) -
Portion of procesds retained 2016 P p47,71,600  On demard, noninterest- Usisecured

from igEUance of PDRS 2013 - 47,271,600 hearing
Relo, Gozon, Blma Law Firm 2018 67,8587 167,887 O demand, noninterest- Unsecured

' o018 109,091 200,000  bearing

statements of financial position

wunt in the
any, as the PDR

ce of “Due (0 shareholdexrs” acct
proceeds retained by the Lomp

0

The outstanding balan |
pertains fo p(),05 pex PDR portion of the original
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the PDRs. This amount will be used for the

issuer, it consideration for the rights granted under
PDRs. Any exXcess s to be remitted to the

~ liquidation of expenses related to the issuance of the
selling shareholders.

The Company’s key management personnel are employed by GGMA and no part of their salaries

was allocated to the Compaiy.

b e e A e i e e e

[ R —
13, Financial Risk Hianagement Olijestives and Policies
The Company’s principal Financial instruments include cash and cash equivalents and AFS
investment. The main purpose of these financial instruments is t0 finance the Company’s
operations. The Company has othet financial assets and liabilities §Uch a8 accounts receivable,
accounts payable and other current linbilities (excluding deferred output ¥ AT) and due to

shareholders, which arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Company’s financial statements are as follows:

o Liguidity wisk. Liquidity risk arises from the possibility that the Company may encounter
difficulties in raising funds to meet commitments frot financial instruments.

Interest vate risk, Fixed rate 'ﬁnanc,ial_instrumem is subject 1o fair value interest rate rigk.

s Credit risk. Credit tisk arises from default of the counterparty.

The BOD reviews and approves the Company’s obj octives and policies.

Liguidity Risk :

The Company’s objective it liquidity management is 10 ensure that the Company has sufficient
liquidity fo meet obligations under normal and adverse circumstanees an d is able to take
advantage of investment opportunities as they arise.

The Company manages its liquidity risk by using its cash and cash equivalents from operations
and interest income from AFS investment to meet its short-term fiquidity needs. The Company
likewise regularly cvaluates other finaucing (nstruments and arrangements 10 broaden the
Company’s 1ange of financing sOUIEES. '

The table below summarizes the maturity profile of the Company’s financial assets used for
liguidity risk management purposes and financial {iabilities based o1 contractual undiscounted
payments as at December 31:

2016 »
RN Iy
Iiove than _
On Demand 310 1% M:omhswm,,.,ﬂ_"_",,,ﬂl,ﬂzﬁf;__.ﬁ_m__‘_.,_,jljg‘,ai__
M___.,mw.,..,ﬂ_..,.m_,._w.mm_.._m._....w,-.._mw WWWWWWW  IYAGILLES
Rinancial Assets - ) )
Cash and. cash equivalents p36,088,183 B B §=26,§§8,,§.:3
Accounts recetvable ' 455,810 - 555,810
AFS investipent ‘ - w19,968 . 19,948,296 20,825,204
] e B7A43,963 savo.0cs  $19,945296 £48,269,227
Finaucis} Liabilities
Acsounts payable and other current (
liabilities® #358,801 B P 87%58@91
g to. sharehOIers o™ 5 %?*ﬁﬁﬁd_mﬂii’;j‘ﬁéﬁﬁﬁ_ _r_w,_ﬂ,"wﬂ,«%;,_,_,__,_;tjp_zg? LLLQ%QM
T ’ st inang LIS s w RAT60A01
321 asal Pocember 31, 2016,

“Exeliing defarred oupit VAT autounting 1o P4,



___AMM.M“_,#__”_.._ZQLL.—M—._MMM._M_# —
T Morethan
On Demand | 310 12 Mounths . ) ysar __Total

WO e st

[T
Tinancia} Assets .

Cash and cash equivalents ' . p26,846,541 s P 126,846,341
Accounts receivable 199,513 - - 199,515
AFS investment o = ssuere  omAMA 20,805,523
_ TTPa7,046,056 P8&D,679 #19,924,844 Fd7,851,379_
Floancial Lisbilites -

Accounts payable and other current )
liabitities* ) P363,561 e P 363,561
Due to shareholders 4,954,143 423 VTASS e ; ;
’ ) ) TTp5,117,706 $42,317,433 P
78 as al December 31, 2013,

* Excthuding deferred oidptit VAT amosntiing Lo B2,0

Interest Rate Risk o
interest rates relates primarlly to the

The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in market
Company’s AFS investment which are subject to fair value interest rate risk.

Fair Value Interest Rate Risk. Fixed rae financial instruments are subject to %his risk. The
Company's AFS investment earms interest at a fixed rate of 5.38% throughout the period of
investment. The following table below demonstrates the sensitivity of fair value changes due (0
possible change in interest rates with all other variables held constant (through the jmpact on other

comprehensive income):

Tocrease
(Decrease) in Bffect on Bquity
Basis Points : 2016 ] 2015
MM“”'“M"“MHM', ’,,',""'" .. '“’.'"L,’_‘,. *‘“—"0'""“
AFS investment : 50 (%33,5(}9} (B931,49 43
(50} 709,382 577,078

Credit Risk ' v , : , .
Credit rigk arising from cash and cash equivalents and AFS investment, the Compaily’s eXposure
to credit risk arises from default of the counterparty, with a maximum exposuLe equal to the
carrying amount of the instruments. It ig the Company’s policy to enfel into transactions with &
diversity of creditworthy parties to mitigate any significant concentration of oredit risk. The
Company, has an internal mechanisn o monitor the granting of oredit and management of credit
exposures. The Company will make provisions, when necessary, for potential losses on credits
extended, The Company does not require sy collateral for its financial assels.

re generally viewed by management as
rparties. No financial assets Wit

31, 2016 and 2015, the {inancial assets &
December 31, 7016 and

onsideting the credit history of the counte
: impaired financial assels a8 at

Ag at Decembe
good and collectible @
Slentified by the Company as past due or

2015,
Credit uglity of Finapeial Assets _ .
ets is managed bY the Company usiig high grade and standard

The credit quality of finaneial ass
grade as internal eredit ratings.
High Grade. This pertains (o 4 connterparty who is not exp@ct@d by the Company to default in
setil'inglits obligations, thus, oredit risk exposure i minimal. This normally includes large prime
financial stitutions and related parties.
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Standard Grade. Other financial assets vot classitied as high grade are included in this category.

" The Company classified its cash and cash equivalents (excluding cash on hand) find AFS
investment as high grade financial assets as at December 31, 2016 and 2015, °

Capital Management _

The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to ensure that it mpaintains a strong
credit rating and healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and maximize shareholder
value. :

The Company manages its capiial structure and makes adjustments to it, i the light of chianges in
economic conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital sTrUCTULE, the Company may adjust the
dividend payment to shareholders, payoff existing debts, retull capital to shareholders or issue
new shares. N

No changes were (made in the objectives, policies or processes for the three years ended
December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014,

n by GMA. The Company’s capital includes the

The Company’s capital management is undertake
ted to B1,21 million and

" total equity, before other comprehensive income, which amoutt
20,78 million as at December 31, 2010 and 2015, respectively.

T

HMMMH_MW
14. Financial Assets and Liabilities

The following methods and agsumptions are used to estimate the fair value of each financial
instrument for which it is practicable 10 estimate such value:

Cash andMCaslu_Eguivalegts, &cgpggt_s_)jggeivabicé;cooug}g__Payable and Other Current Liabilities
(excluding Deferred O_utp_LILVI#;TmQ Due to ﬁ@mlﬁ_@i
The carrying amounts of these financial instruments approximate their fair values due to the short-

term maturities of these financial instruments.

AFS Iovestment ‘ B

The estimated fair value of AFS debt jnvestment is pased on the disco unted values of future cash
flows. The discount rates used were based on the spot:‘f‘yield curve derived from government
securities of different tenors plus a7 estimate of the counterparty’s credit spread, which is based on
the counterparty’s credit rating, The fair value is under svel 2 of the fair value hisrarchy.

The following table below demonstrates the sensitivity of credit spread (thro ugh the impact on
other compreliensive income). '

Increase

(Decrease) 0 _ Bffecton Bquity
_ Basis Points _ﬂ__u_w,__ﬂ}f_)}; 6 2015
54 (P536,1 13) (?592,292)

e
AFS investment '
(80) - 554,042 614,393
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15, Basie/Diluted Larnings (Loss) Per Share Computstion

Basic/diluted EPS is computed as follows:

_ ’ __,._,ﬂ_'_“_-_..,.,.;_ﬂ.._‘_.,_'_-._.__.M,_ﬂm-_w_.ﬁ&Q.iﬁ_._m.w%‘?i5 2014
Net income atrbutable to equity holders (&} £1,032,216 R635,193 £350,186
Tyo000 10,000 10,000

Comwon shares issued at | b;_,«"'gi_mii‘lEi“)ﬂ?ﬂ&lﬁflﬁ%ﬁﬁl e — AL
Basic/diluted earnings per ghare {a/b). »103.22 B63.52 735.02

The Compaty has no dilutive potential cominon shares ouistanding therefore basic EPS is same a3

diluted EPS.

16. Livents after the Reporting Date

On March 27, 2017, the Company’s BOD approved a cash distribution to PDR holders

of £0.73 per share totaling B607 44 million, in relation t© dividends declared by GMA to all
shareholders of record as at April 20, 2017 and will be paid-on May 16, 2017.
date, the BOD approved a resolution to pass on the entire amount of the cash

d from GMA without deducting its operating eXpenses and approved the use of
ivalents apd AFS investment to cover for these

On the same
dividends receive
the interest ihcome from its cash.and sash equ

EXpenses.
Further, the BOD approved the Company’s declaration and distribution of cash dividends
amounting to #1.00 million to.all stockholders of record as at April 10,20 17,

e e i e A

17. Supplementary Information Required by Revenue Regulations (RR) 15-2010

The Compaity reported and/or paid the following types of taxes in2016:

VAT

The Company’s sales are subject to output™V AT while its purchases from other VAT-registered
individuals or corporations are subject to input vAT. The V AT rate is 12%.

a, Net sales/receipts and output VAT declared in the Company’s ¥ AT retulns
The Company’s sales that aré sulsject to output VAT are reported under “Exercise foe”
account in the statement of comprehensive income. ,
The Company's taxable sales from sepyices amounted 10 P160,822 with cotresponding output

VAT of #19,299.

b, Input VAT
Balance at January 1 o ' 531366,9)22
Curtent yeat’s dommestic 1:_1{&&:11&&@}%1&1\:@3 U 938 i
Total input V AT . : 460,89 (,
Applied against output VAT . I ) (19 ,.29 9}
Balanee at December 31 ‘ - £441,598

FUTTY
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Other Taxes. and Licenses

All other local and national taxes paid for the year ended December 31, 2016 consist of:

Local taxes and license fees ' : 31,009
Registration fees S o . 500
‘ ' . 531,509

Withholding Taxes

Withholding taxes paid and/or withheld for the yeer ended Decembet 3 1, 2016 consist of:

Final withholding tax , P42,980,314
o 15281

Expanded withholding tax - _ o o
- ‘, ‘ TTP47,995,595

\ents and cases with the

Tax Assessmglj;sﬂgg_ci Cases . _
g tax assessit
¢ pending tax cases outside

As at December 31, 2016, the Company has no ongoif,
Bureau of Internal Revenite (BIR. Likewige, the Company has no othe
the administration of the BIR a3 at Decembet 31, 2016,




We have audited in accordance with

L

GyCip Gones Velayo:& G Tel: (637) 621 DAY En’f)»i‘\/l"f%{*- Reg No 0021,

8760 Ayaln Avenue. Faye ((32) &19 0872 Necenber 14 2015, walic untll December 31, 2018
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Iv.

B. Amounts

7. Indebiedness 10 Related Parties (Long-term Loans

e AT £

Supplcmen'tal Schedules Required by Anpex 68-B

A, Financial Assets

Receivable from Directors, Ofticers. Bployess, Related Parties
and Principal Grockholdets (Qber Than Related Parties)

Related Parties which are '

cetvables and Payable from/to
of Financial Statermnents

C. Amounis of Re
’ Eliminated during Consol idation Process

p. Intangible Agsels - Othey Asssts

E., Long-term Debt -

from Related Parties)
G. Guaraniees of Gecurities of Other lssuers

H, Capital Stock

échefiule of All the Bffective Standards and ‘Imerpretations

Reconciliation of Retained Barnings Available for Djvidend Declaration

Schedule of vinancial Ratios

Attached

Not applicable

ot applicable

Mot applicable

Not applicable
Nat applicable
ot applicable
Z\it&lﬂ‘;}.’is:d
Attached
Aftached

A.%Lac:‘had



GMA HOLDINGS, INC._______ -
T GUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULES REQUIRED BY ANNEX 68-E
A8 AT DECEMBER 31, 2016 |

Schedule A Financial Assets

Amount shown i

the statements of  Income received

and association of gach 1ssue . financial position and accrued
,_,_-,_..—_,um.A#__M.._,A_,__m_.wvm__,_.w__..w..d.._a_____,__.,__‘_v

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand : #35,000 B

Cash in banks: : _ . . :
Union HBank of the Phillppines 1,450,398 - . 4,778
Deutsche Rank ) - 704
o Banco De Oro o ' $5,482 . 196
- , '1,540,880 5,675
Cash equivalants - Unicapital, Ine. : 25,347,273 862,269
. 26,688,153 P&67,944

Available»f{:r»sala investwent R20,825,204 £1,128,75

B, Amounts Recetvable from Directors, Officers Employses, Related Parties and

Schedule
Prineipal Stockhiolders (Other Than Related Paxties)
| |  Deductions
Nate and Balance a3 at Amownt Amounl - Balance as at
sted  writtenl off  Corrent Nongugrent DC@BL‘J:?L—MQL 6.

dcsignmion‘ Jagwaty 1, 2016 -Additions ..L‘?.il‘:'.
yable from directors, officer, smployees, related parties and

Not Applicable: The Company has 10 rece]
principa'i'stocldmlders as af December 31, 201 6, B

Schedule C. Amounts of Receivables and Payable from/t0 nelnted Parties which are Eliminated
during Consolidation.?mceﬁss of Financial Statements

R Deductions .
Mame and Balance as 4t Amount Amount Ralance as al
wri’tfcnufgﬂ w@_grrent ) Monourrent December 31, 29_1”6__

_ designation Januery 1, 2016 _Additions collected

Mot Applicable: The Company has ne yeceivable from/payable 10 ¢
consolidated a8 at December 31, 2016,

lated parties which are

Sehedule I Intsngiﬁlevg’.&ssets - Other Assels
Other changes!
Beginning Charged to cost additions
Description palance Additions at oost and oxpenses . { deductions) _@1{111@,_1_)&1&1;% _
Mot zl:pplicabic: The Company has no intangible asset as at Decembs! 11, 2016. )

page | 2



Schedule B, Leng-terii Debt

Ameunt  Amount shown urder caption - Amount shown under
Title of issug and type of . authorized  “Current portion of long term  caption “Long-term debt”
by indenture _ debt” in related balance sheet . in refated balance sheet

P

Not Applicable: The Compaty has no long-ter] debt-as at Decernber 31, 2016.

Gehedule T Indebtedness (0 Related Parties (Long-tern Loans from Reluted Parties)
Palance at

: Balance al
Name of related party o J.@ELE‘LILYJLZQJQ o December 31, 2016

Not Applicable: The Company has 00 indebtedness 10 8 related party 88 at December 31, 2016,

aschedunle G Gudrantiees of Securities of Other Issuers- : '

Name of jssuing entity of
Securities guamnteed by the
Company for which this
statement is filed o

Title of issue of
each class of Total amownt Amount owned by
person for which the Nature of

securities guaranteed and
guaranteed outstanding statement is filed  guaranteo

le: The Company hds 10 guarantees of securities of other issuers as at

Not Applicab
December 31, 2010,

Schedule H. Capital Stoek

Number of Number
shares issued of shares
and  reserved for
outstanding gptions,
as showi warcants, MNurnber
Number under related conversion of shares beld Directors,
of shares  balance shest and other by related officers, and
Title of issue_ authorized gaption __ rights jarties  employees Others
Common__» 10,000 16,000 . = 9,991 9

Page |3
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TFRIC 15
JFRIC 16
IFRIC 17
FRIC IS
AI"—I‘:IUC' 18 -

——
{ Bxtinguishing

et

Prepayments of 2

it

Hedges of

i
istributions of Nop-cash Asgsefs 1o Owners
- .

B PR
“Transfers of Assets from Custoraers

W o e

Operating Activities

T

et b

e
Agrecments for the Construction of Real Bstate™

e T

RS
2 Net Inveshment in 2 Foreign Operation -

e U
Financial Liabilities with Equity

Instruments
IFRIC 20 Stripping Costs iz the Producticn Phase of & suitace
Mine
e I
IFRIC 21 1 evies
.J.M._,_mﬂ_dﬂﬂﬁ__w,w__
IFRIC 22 Foreign Currency Transastions and Advance

- _‘,......--4.-_...,“..._-—”--._—,_‘-——”

Amencinetit 10 PAS 16 and PAS 41 T R N DA
Tnterpretations ' T T 1 T h
B [ rver) I e
1FRIC 1 Changes in Existing Decommissioning, R estoration and s
' Similar Liabilities
IRRIC 2 Iviembers’ Share in Co-operative Entities and Similar
[nstruments
I _M,_.,_,__...____ .-_-;,,_4..___.,,,._«.._._,_.._‘,,,_,_._.... SIS SUNUEINE e
IFRIC 4 Deteymining Whether an Arrangement Containg a Lease
_F_—_.__»——;_._a—_.—,..__.__...._.__.ﬂ_..,.__..__m. M J——
IFRIC S Rights to Interesls arising ﬁ'o.m_De-commissioning,
' Restoration and Bay ironmental Rehabilitation Funds
[ S SR A B
IFRIC 6 Linbilities arising from Participating in 2 Specific
Market - Waste Electrical and Electuronic Bquiproent 1 -
S s e u.__u,___ﬁ_-—__,___.,_——-—._'_.‘...._.»__....,,,..._.h___.,__..-_._._.._-n,__..—
IFRIC 7 {Applying the Restatement Approach under PAS 29
) Financial Reporting in Hyperinfl tationary Beonom ies
) A, ..ﬁ.,.__‘__d_____»-f——___,.,_d__,__.__w__._.‘._
IFRIC Y Reassessent of BEmbedded Derivatives
_w___,_..»-———'-—-___‘__-—q—w—-._,._.,—.—_._.’___'__..,_— _____ S S
Amendments to Philippine Toterpretation IF RIC 9 and Ve
PAS 39; Embedded Derivatives
T e T T RS
IFRIC 10 Tnterim Financial Reporting and Impairnient
R ‘Mw,_.____ww__,_._,-#w_
PRICHZ - ¢ Gervics Conoession Arrangeinents ‘
Fkia B RS — ._,_1,,#_
IFRIC 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes
o H_,_,—-—_J_M-m.—_«__‘«w_-‘,—_,__».;«___._;ww -~
IFRIC 14 The Limiton & Defined Beaetit Asset, Minimum i
Punding Requirements and thetr Inleraction
MM#.WM.M___wa
Amendments t0 Philippine ;m::rpwtatig ps IFRIC 14,
Mipimum Funding Requiremedt

et

Not Early Adopted

e

Clonsideration™
‘-]mmductien of the Furo &
Governmeint Agsistance - No Specific Relation 10 /

o



siers T —
SIC 24 Income Taxes - Changes in the Tax S:tatm af an Ent\t)
‘ © lor its Shareholders
__,.,__....-—,‘—_,_‘._.._'_-——-— _,.,._.u-—__...—_,__.—«-—-w.-.__m .—‘_._,_.__~._,_.._.__,_._¢_‘,...~ et e 7 —-—v—*—————-—""“-—-—--—-—,._,..—-—-—-
81C 247 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Thvolving the 5 J
. ilegal Form ofa Lease . ) :
I R R
81C 29 ' ‘Serviee Conwsston ALl angeme
SIC 3L Rc\'emw Bm ter "lransactums Tnvolvmy Advertising s
Services P
M___,_._.-——-———“‘—".-—--o M .._—-—-,.__.m.-,_....—_,..,.__,. ........ .——_.,_w-——«——-’—-—‘—,__..'-——--—'——""m ..—-_...,__.._..—-._..—
S1C 3% Intangible Assets - Web - Bite Costs 4
o e MM_A_H._.FLM_._«_ I—

hich-will hecome g}j‘ectii}e subseguent 10 December 31, 2016.

% Standards and interpretations w
siandalds and interprefations which

{ations tagged as “Not Applicable” are those
| for the year endcci

Note: Standards and interpre
it covered transaction as-al afld

were adopted bul the entity has no significan
Deccmber 31,2016,
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_MMWJLMMN_M_W_.‘.m__m,__m_.__d,___,_w.,,__,,_
111, RECONCILIATION OF TR TAINED EARNINGS

AVAILABLE FOR DIVIDEND DPECLARATION

FOR THE YEAR ENDED PECEMBER 31,2016

Unappmpriatcd retained earnings, beginning . P675,007
Net income during the year closed to retained earnings 1.032,216
Dividend deslaration during the year _ , o {(600,000)
Retained earn i'ﬁ'ééﬁ?@'iﬁiﬁc?"fZaTc'iE'iEEE;Taf"Ei&ﬁ&%EG'1;1';{{;{?5'555555 31, 2016 TRL,107,223

"-.._,.-vw.-.w,nﬂ..,—my.......-mv—w




GMA HOLDING

Tv. SCHEDULE OF
FOR THE YEAR

Financial Raties
Current/liguidity ratio
Asset to equity ratio
Debt to equity ratio

Finaucint Ratios

‘. Return 0N equity
Return on asset
ERITDA margitt

s, INC.
'E'"INAN*CEAL R

e A T

o e _..._.,..,...___...__-._____,..-—-—-.-.-—-

ATIOS

8 ENDED DECENMBER 31, 2,016, 2015 and 2014

j}wlemi;&{}}-—

I —— _h.__;f;?_ﬁézz:i,xzt,iz?_x;a_ﬂ,ﬁ-_m_"w-_m_%’ 16 2015

“Current assels over current Jiabilities 0.58 0.58

Total assets over total aquity 47.18 83.06
46.18 82.06

Total liabilities over total equity

Years ended December

patiebn

_-_;,u..w.w,.__,jﬁ%i‘zélijﬂi?&___M.M,&JQJ.@,_QQLLW_%Q&-
Net income over total equity 100%  109% 30%
> et income .over total assets 2% 1% 1%

Earpings before interest, tax and depreciation -
% 49% 37%

r total yevenue 58

and amortizatiop ove
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- CERTIFICATION

THIS IS TO CERTIFY that in compliance with Article 9(B) of
the 1987 Philippine Constitution, none of the Directors,
Independent Directors and Officers of GMA Holdings, Inc. are
elected as public servants and or appointed in any government
agency, local or foreign, without authority of law.

WL 1y 200
Issued this ____ day of . 2017.

Compliance Officer
GMA Holdings, Inc.

——



CERTIFICATION OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR

|, ARTEMIO V. PANGANIBAN, Filipino, of legal age and a resident of 1203

Acacia Street, Damarifias Village, Makati City, after having been duly sworn to in
accordance with law, do hereby declare that:

1.

| am a nominee for independent director of GMA HOLDINGS, INC. and have
been its independent director since 2009;

J am affiliated with the foilowihg listed companies or organizations:

Company/Organization Position/ Period of
Relationship Service
GMA Network, Inc. [ndependent Director 2007 - present
First Philippine Holdings Corporation independent Director 2007 -~ present
Metro Pacific Investments Corporation | Independent Director 2007 - present
Manila Electric Company Independent Director 2008 - present
Robinsons. Land Corporation [ndependent Director 2008 - present
Petron Corporation ‘Independent Director 2010 - present
Asian Terminals, Inc. Independent Director 2010 - present
Philiopine Long Distance Tel. Co. Independent Director 2013 - present
Jollibee Foods Corporation Non-Executive Director 2012 - present
Metropolitan Bank & Trust Company Senior Adviser 2007 - present
Double Dragon Properties Corporation Adviser 2014 - present
Bank of the Philippine Islands Member, Advisory Council | 2018 - present

(For my full bio-data, log on to my personal website: cipanganiban.com)

| possess all the qualifications and none of the disqualifications to serve as an
Independent Director of GMA HOLDINGS, INC., as provided for in Section 38 of
the Securities Regulation Code, its Implementing Rules and Regutations and

other SEC issuances.

To the best of my knowledge, | am not related to any director/officer/substantial
shareholder of GMA HOLDINGS, INC. and its subsidiaries and affiliates.

To the best of my knowledge, | am not the subject of any pending criminal or
administrative investigation or proceeding.

To the best of my knowledge, | am neither an officer nor an employee of any
government agency or government-owned and controlled corporation.

| shall faithfully and diligently comply with my duties and responsibilities as
independent Director under the Securities Regulation Code and its Implementing
Rules and Reguiations, Code of Corporate Governance and other SEC

Issuances.

[ shall inform the Corporate Secretary of GMA HOLDINGS, INC., of any changes
in the above-mentioned information within five (5) days from its occurrence.




MAR 3 o 7007
Done this__ day of March, 2017 at Makati City.

EMIO V. PANGANIBAN

Affiant

MAR 3 g 2017

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me this ____ day of March 2017 at Makati City,
affiant personally appeared before me and exhibited to me his Diplomatic Passport
Number DE0013400 issued on December 15, 2015 by the DFA, Manila and will expire
on December 14, 2020.

Doc. No. / | ATTY. VIRGILIO R, BATALLA
Page No. o NOTARY PUBLIC FOR MAKATI CITY
Book No. Qo <.;-"53T. NO. 1-38
Series of 2017, UL I 1, J018

ROLL OF AT

v MCLE COMPLE
L8.8.0.R No. Ma ERJAM 29,2007
PTR Mo, JAMLE, 2017
EXECUTIVE BELDG, CENTER
MAKATI AVE. COR, JUPITER 5T, MAKATI CITY



CERTIFICATION OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR
I, Jaime C. Laya, Fiiip‘ino,, .0f~1eg&1 age and a resident of 11 Papay Avente, QUezont City, after having been
duly sworn (o i accordance with law do hereby declare that: S

|, 1 am a nominee for independent direstor of GMA Holdings, Inc. and have been jts independent '

director since 2007.

o 1 am affitiated with the following companies ot organizations (including Government-Owned and

Controlled Corporation):

Secaiached e S

e e T T I U

I [ EU e

3. 1 possess all the qualification and none of the disqualifications to serve as an Independent
Director of GMA Holdings, Inc., a3 provided for in Section 38 of the Securities Reguiation Code,
its Implernenting Rules and Regulations and other SEC issuances. :

¢ following ciirector!oFﬁcer/’substantial sharebolder of GMA Holdings, Inc. and

4. 1am related to th
ided under Rule 38.2.3 of the

its subsidiaties and affiliates other than the relationship prov
Secyrities Regulation Code. (where applicable).

Vﬁ'ﬁiﬁﬁﬁ"ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁf"'!""'“”W”'"’i(—:éﬁmif

OFFICER/
SUBSTANTIAL
8 ﬁéML_MMW.,_;,”M.,,_..M.ﬂwmw_k
.T}Iﬁﬂ‘é,....,,m - .
"MM IRT————— ...,‘..W_...______'_m__.-—————"W"__.__....
_HM_MW#M_.m.__,“_w___..._W._,,_..V I
I -

e e

5. To the best of my knowledge, I am not the subject of any pending cfiminal or administrative

investigation of proceeding.

._,__—_._.a____.,,_._-w—-—wm-_ww-—mu—--o-—u-a»—-—n*e-_m.,.v—f_w_-__» —
OFFENSE TRIBUNAL OR STATUS
CHARGEDHNVESTIGATEH AGENCY

B . INVOLVED e

Nove e N I

e ______‘_m,.__._w»——________.___. ........................ P

‘MM’_HM"EMW‘ o ———

— ——— T ———<__ |

" T Ny iii

P }i
o ]



6. 1havethe required written o consent from the President of the Cu
to be an independent director in GMA Holdings,
Memorandurm Circular No. 17 and Section 12, Rule KVHI

7. 1 shall faithfully and diligently ¢
under the Securities Regulation Code and its imp
Corporate Governance and other SEC lssuances..

g 1 shall inform the Corporate Secretary of G
abovementioned information within five days from its occuTence.

None, this 27" day of March, 2017 at Makati City

TUEEREL W

MAR 3 0 7001

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to be
personaﬂy appeared before me and exhibited to me his Philippine Passport No. EC31

Manila on 7 January 2015,

ATTY. ¥

Doc. No. < [ : HOTARY

pageNo. .~ a G

Book No. ﬁy ' (bt

Series of 2017. \

| BARKATLCITY

leura) Center of the Philippines
Inc. pursuant 10 Office of the President
of the Revised Civil Service Rules.

omply with my duties and responsibilities as independent director
[ementing Rules and Regulations, Code of

MA Holdings, Inc. of any changes in t

fore me this 27" day of March, 2017 at Makati City, affiant
23727 issued at



JAYME C. LAYA, Ph.D.
WMarch 27,2017 '

Chajrman and President - Philippine Trust Company (Philtrust Bank)

Chairman ~ Bscuela faller de Filipinag Foundation, Ing., Don Norbeito Ty Poundation, Ine. : )

Independent Directot, Philippine XA Life Insurance Co., Inc., GMA Network, Inc., M A Holdings, Inc,,
Ayala Land, Inc., Manila Water Company, 1nc., Charter Ping An lusurance Corporation

Trustee, Cultural Centsr of the Philippines, St. Paul University - Quezon City, Metropolitan Museum of
Manila, Yuchengeo Museum, Avyala Foundation, Tuc., and others

Director, Vatious family corporations

Columnpist, Manila Bulletin

Past Positions ~ Goveriument
Minister of Education, Culture and Sports and Chairman, University of the P
versities and colleges, 1984-86

Minister of the Budget, 1975-81 :
Chairman of the Monetary Board and Governor, Central Bank of the Philippines, 1981-84

Chairman, National Commission for Culture and the Arts, 1996-2001

Professor of Business Administration and Dean, College of Business
Philippines, 1957-78

Action Officer, Intramuros A dministration (old city restoration project), 1979-86

hilippines and other state uni-

Administration, Untversity of the

Reeent Past Positions — Private Sector

Pounder and Chairman, Laya Mananghaya & Co., Certified Public Accountants and Management.Consult-
ants (Member, KPMG International), 1986-2004, :
Director and Trustee of various organizations — Manila Polo Club, Bankers Association of the Philippines,

Association of Certified public Accountants in Private Practice, and others

Education -

B:S.B.A. (aoco&nti-ng; magna cum fqude), University of the Philippines, 1957
M.S. (industrial inanagement), Georgia Institute of Teclnology, 1961

Ph.D. (financial management), Stanford University, 1966

Honors

Orden del Mérito Civil (rank of Eneomiends de Nimero), Spain, 2014

Distinguished Achievement Award, Philippine [nstitute of Certified public Accountants, 2008

Lifetime Achievement dward, Association of Certified Fublic Accourdants in Public Practice, 2007

Doctor of Laws (honoris causa), Philippine W omens’ University, 1983
Doctor of Humanities (ronoris causa), Mindanzo State University, 1980
Outstanding CPA in Government, Philippine Institute of Certified Public Accountants, 1979

Ten Qutstanding Young Men (TOYM) Awardes (Business Education), 1967

professional Quatification : .

Certified Public Accountant, 1957 examination (8™ place) \ S

. ﬁ\-,‘_ \‘\.\\
pevsonal Information : N
) N . 1‘:.»-- TR : " /
Born January 8, 1939 : S /
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